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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 51st Annual General Meeting of the Members of Conarat Engineers Limited will be held on

Monday,  the 15th September, 2025  at  3.00 p.m. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to

transact the following business:

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,

2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. JitendraShankerlalSura (DIN 00480172), who retires by rotation and being eligible,

offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business :

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Nirmal Parikh (DIN:07507113) as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a
second term from 21st September, 2025 to 20th September, 2030

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and based on the recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Nirmal Parikh (DIN :- 07507113), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term up to 20th September, 2030. The Company has

received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying intention to propose Mr. Nirmal Parikh

as a candidate for the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable

to retire by rotation, for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 21st September, 2025 up to 20th September,

2030. “

“RESOLVED FURTHER THATthe Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers conferred herein, to any

committee of Directors, with power to further delegate to any executives / officers of the Company to do all such acts, deeds,

matters and things and also to execute such documents, writings etc; as may be necessary in this regard.”

4. Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, Company Secretary (M No. F2655)  Proprietor of M/s.  Sanjay Dholakia & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company and in this regard, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as anOrdinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,

Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, Company Secretary (M No. F2655)   Proprietor of  M/s, Sanjay Dholakia &Associates, Practicing

Company Secretaries, be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of Five year,

commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company and to issue the

secretarial audit report as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and other relevant laws.”

“Resolved further that he Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration and other terms and

conditions for the Secretarial Auditor, as may be mutually agreed upon between the Company and Secretarial Auditor, and

to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or incidental to the appointment of Secretarial Auditor for the term

of Five Years

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Vadodara (Narendra D Shah)
Date: 31.07.2025 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts concerning

the business under Item No. 3 to 4 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors of the Company

at its meeting  held on 31st July, 2025 considered that the special business under Item No. 3 to 4 being considered unavoidable,

be transacted at the  51st  AGM of the Company.

2. General instructions for accessing and participating in the 51st AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and voting through electronic

means including remote e-Voting:

a. In compliance with General Circular 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 09/2024 dated 19th September, 2024 and other

relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Companies Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)and Rules made thereunder, the 51stAnnual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company

is being held through VC / OAVM without the physical presence of Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for
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the 51st AGM will be the Branch Office of the  Company the situated at 2nd Floor, Bombay Shopping Centre,  R. C. Dutt

Road, Vadodara-390007.

b. In terms of the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with,

there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members under

Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the 51st AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of

the Act, representatives of the Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting and for

participation in the 51st AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting.

c. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode between 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation

at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not

include large shareholders (shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction of first come

first served basis.

d. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map of the AGM venue, proxy form and attendance slip

is not annexed in this Notice.

e. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations 2015 (as amended) and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time, the

Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM.

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for

facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using

remote e-Voting system  as  well as voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

f. In line with the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice of the 51st AGM will be available on the website of the

Company at www.conartengineers.com and on the websites of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and also on the

website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

g. Attendance of the Members participating in the 51st AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall be counted for the purpose of

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

h. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the

Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are deemed to be interested, maintained

under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection on the website of the Company by the

members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without

any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect

such documents can send an email to  www.conartengineers.com

i. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM

through VC. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting are

requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution / authorization letter to the Company or upload on the VC

portal / e-voting portal.

j. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India (“ICSI”)  and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with circulars issued by MCA and SEBI in this

regard, the Company is providing  remote e-Voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at

the 51st AGM and facility for those Members  participating in the 51stAGM to cast vote through e-Voting system during the

51st AGM.

k. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with circulars issued by MCA and SEBI from time to time.

3. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Policy-17/57/2021-CL-MCA of Govt. of India and BSE  Notice 20240106-55

dated 06-01-2024, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is not dispatched physically  but being sent only through

electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories .  Members who

hold the shares may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website at

www.conartengineers.com, website of stock exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com .

4. Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103

of the Act.
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5. Brief resume of Director proposed to be re-appointed, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies

in which he holds directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships

between directors inter-se as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation

and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 with the Stock Exchange, are provided in the annexure to the notice.

6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will  be closed from Saturday the 6th September, 2025
to  Monday the 15th September,2025, (both days inclusive), for the purpose of  Annual General Meeting.

7. Members desirous of obtaining any information in respect of Accounts of the Company are requested to send their queries

in writing to the company at its Registered Office so as to reach at least seven days before the date of the meeting, so as to

enable the Company to keep ready at the venue of the meeting for furnishing the same.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by

every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN

to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical

form can submit their PAN details to the Company or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

9. As per the regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018

as amended, securities of the Company can be transferred only in dematerialized Form  with effect from 1st Aril, 2019, except

in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities . In view of this and to  eliminate all risks associated

with physical shares, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting  their holding in

dematerialized form  shares on June 8, 2018 to permit transfer of listed securities only in the dematerialized form.

10. Voting through electronic means and Declaration of Results:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the

Company is pleased to providing remote e- voting facility to its members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 51st

AGM and also facility for those members participating in the 50thAGM to cast vote through e-voting system during the 51st

AGM.

Mr. Jitendra Sura, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and in his absence Mr. Jimish J. Sura, Executive Director

– Finance & CFO  will declare the results based on the Scrutinizer’s report received on e-voting and voting at the meeting.

The voting results along with Scrutinizer’s report will be displayed on the

(i) Notice Board of the Company at its Registered Office and Corporate Office.

(ii) Company’s website www.conartengineers.com and www.bseindia.com

(iii) NSDL’s website www.evoting.nsdl.com and

The instructions for casting your vote electronically are as under:

13.. The remote  e-voting period begins Friday the 12th September, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Sunday, the 14th

September , 2024 ( 5:00 p.m. IST). During this period Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in

dematerialized form, as at the cut-off date of Friday, the August 15, 2025may cast their vote electronically. Any person, who

acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after dispatch of this Notice and holding shares as

on Friday, the 22nd August, 2025, may obtain the login Id and password by sending request  at evoting@nsdl.co.in. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting after14th September, 2025 (5.00 p.m. IST).

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend / participate in the AGM through

VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM and have not casted their vote through remote e-voting

and are otherwise not barred from doing this, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM.

14. The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjay Dholakia of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,

as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

15. The details of process and manner for remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM are as under:

Step 1.  The shareholders should log in to NSDL on to the e-voting system at http://   www.evotingi.nsdl.com/

Step 2.  Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details of Step 1 is mentioned below :

How to log-in to NSDL e-voting system ?
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL : http://  www.evotingi.nsdl.com/

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ actions.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter User Id, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL Services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at http://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your

existing  IDEAS login. Once you login to NSDL e-services after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you

can proceed to Step 2 i.e Cast your vote electronically.

Manner of holding shares i.e. Dmat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client

b) account with NSDL ID For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and

client ID is 12***** then your user ID is

IN300***12*****

c) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 digits beneficiary ID

d) account with CDSL 12********** then your user ID  is 12**********

e) For Members holding shares in Physical EVEN number followed by Folio Number

f) Form registered with the Company. For example if

your Folio Number is 001*** and EVEN is

101456 then user ID is 101456001***

3. Your User ID details are given below

4. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was

communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your

password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID  is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated

to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open

the attachment i.e.a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.

The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password.”

(ii) If your email id is not registered please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose

email ids are not registered.

5. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the ‘initial password’ or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” ( If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL)

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

mentioning your demat account member / Folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based on login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system

of NSDL.

6. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “ Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

7. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login”  button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Details of Steps 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-voting. Click on e-voting. Then, click on Active

Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Acting Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and

whose voting cycles is in active status.

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify  the number of shares for which you wish

to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take a printout of votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format)

of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies)

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.jayeshvyas.hotmail.com< with a copy marked to

evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential. Login to the e-voting website will  be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password.

In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details password? Or “Physical User Reset Password”  option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for

Shareholders available at the download section of www. evoting.nsdl.com  or call on toll free no. : 1800-222-990 or send a

request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email Ids are not registered with the depositories for processing user id and
password and registration of email ids for e-voting for the resolution set out in this notice :

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No. Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share

certificate (front and back) PAN (self attested) scanned copy of PAN card, AADHAR (self attested copy of Aadhar Card) by

email to (Company email ID.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID+CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,

client master or copy of Consolidated Account Statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), Aadhar (self

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company email ID.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR  e-VOTING OF THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members / shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote

on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-

Voting system in AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to

vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be connected for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the

AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through NSDL e-Voting system. Members may

access the same at http://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials.

The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/ members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed.

Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
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Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute

rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use the Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during

the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot

may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable

Wi-Fi  or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their

name demat account / folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The same will be replied by the company

suitably.

Instructions for Members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM

a. Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM provided by NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com by using their

remote e-voting login credentials and selecting  the EVSN  Members who do not have the User ID and Password for E-voting

or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned

in this Notice. Further, Members can also use OTP based login for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/

JPG Format) of its Board Resolution / Authority Letter etc. authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM

on its behalf. The said Resolution / Authority letter shall be send through its registered Email Id to the Scrutinizer at Jayesh

Vyas with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

b. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the time    scheduled for the AGM and will be

available for Members on first come first served basis.

c. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by

sending their request from their registered Email Id mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. Pan, Mobile No.

to the Company at www.conartengineers.comprior to seven days from the date of AGM.   Those Members who have registered

themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views / ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves

the right to restrict the number of speaker depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

d. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact on evoting@nsdl.co.in / 1800- 222-990 or contact Mr.

Amit Vishal, Senior Manager, NSDL at amitv@nsdl.co.in / +91 22 24994360 / +91 9920244780 or Mr. Sagar Ghosalkar,

Assistant Manager, NSDL at sagar.ghosalkar@nsdl.co.in / +91 22 24994553 / +91 9326781467.

9. Recommendation to the Members.

It is recommended to join the AGM through laptop for better experience. You are requested to use internet with a good speed

to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. Members connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptop connecting

via mobile hotspot may experience audio / video loss due to fluctuation in their data network. It is therefore recommended to

use stable wi-fi or wired connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

Item Nos. 3

At the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th September, 2020, the shareholders had approved the appointment

of Mr. Nirmal Parikh (DIN : 07507113) as an Independent Director to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years up to 24 th

September, 2025,

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 31st July, 2025, based on (i) outcome performance evaluation (2)

recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and (iii) experience and significant contributions made by Mr.

Nirmal Parikh, have approved  his re-appointment an Independent Director for the second term of 5 (Five consecutive years from

21st September, 2025 to 20th September, 2030, subject to the approval of the shareholders.

Relevant details relating to re-appointment and continuation of Directorship of Mr. Nirmal Parikh, including his profile as required

by the Act, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI are provided in the “Annexure A” to the Notice.

Mr. Nirmal Parikh is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has consented to act

as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has also received declaration from him that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149

of the Act and the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Nirmal Parikh fulfil the conditions for re-appointment as

Independent Director as specified in the Act and Listing Regulations. Mr. Nirmal Parikh is independent of the management.

The company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Nirmal

Parikh for the office of the Director of the Company.

Other than Mr. Nirmal Parikh and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Management Personnel and their relatives are in any

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in these resolutions, except to the extent of their respective shareholding,

if any, in the Company. This statement may also be regarded as an appropriate disclosure under the Listing Regulations.

Brief resume of Mr. Nirmal Parikh

Mr. Nirmal Parikh is Bachelor of Commerce and   Chartered Accountant having 10 years of in-depth experience and having

expertise in the area of financial management, taxation, merger and acquisitions, project finance, legal compliances, marketing

and supply chain management, techno commercial analysis and operational management.

The Company has immensely benefited during the tenure of Mr. Nirmal Parikh, as an Independent Director and thus recommend

the resolution for his re-appointment as set out at Item no. 3 of the accompanying notice.

Item No.4

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) the Company has to annex its Board’s Report Secretarial Audit

Report given by the practicing company secretary in the format as may be prescribed. Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration) Rules 2014 prescribes Form MR-3 for the said Secretarial Audit Report. Further, Section 179 of the Act read with

Rule 8 of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 provide that the appointment of secretarial auditor

shall be made by the Board at the meeting of Board. SEBI vide its notification dated 12th December, 2024 amended Regulation

24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The amended regulation read with SEBI

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 Dated 31st December, 2024 (the Circular) have inter-alia prescribes the

term of appointment/re-appointment, eligibility, qualification, disqualifications of Secretarial Auditor of a listed Company.

Pursuant to amended Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, w.e.f. 01st April, 2025, every Listed Company on the

recommendation of the Board of Directors shall appoint or re-appoint (i) an Individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two

terms of five consecutive years with the approval of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the above, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31st July, 2025 considered, approved and recommended

to the Shareholders of the Company for their approval, the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, proprietor of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia

& Associates, (Peer Reviewed firm) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company at the ensuing 51st Annual General Meeting for a term

of 5 consecutive years, to conduct Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Act and other

relevant laws and regulations.

Sanjay Dholakia the proprietor of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia & Associates have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that

their appointment, if made, would be within the limit specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He has further

confirmed that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditor in terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

other relevant laws and regulations.
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Brief Profile of Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, Proprietor of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia & Associates.

Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, Company Secretary (M. No. F2655) Proprietor of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia & Associates (peer reviewed firm)

founded in the year 1991 and he has expertise in the field of Company Law, SEBI guidelines and related regulatory affairs. He is

providing services as Secretarial Auditor for various listed companies and rendering company law services to unlisted public

listed companies, private limited companies and LLPs.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are concerned or interested, financially or

otherwise, in this item. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No.4 of this Notice for approval of the

members.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date :31.07.2025 (Narendra D Shah)
Place: Vadodara Company Secretary & Compliance officer

ACS-7480
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ANNEXURE -A

Details of Directors Seeking Appointment / Re-Appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and SS-2 on General Meeting)

Name Mr. Jitendra Sura Mr. Nirmal Parikh

DIN 00480172 07507113

Date of Birth 18th October, 1950 19th August, 1991

Date of Appointment 1st December, 1978 10th August, 2020

Qualifications Civil Engineer B.com, Chartered Accountant

Expertise in specific functional areas Civil Construction and Engineering Financial Management, Taxation, Merger

& Acquisition, Project Finance, Marketing

and Supply Chain Management, Techno

Commercial Analysis and Operational

Management

Directorships held  in other private / public NIl NIL

companies (excluding foreign companies

and Section 8 companies)

Chairperson of Board, Committee in other NIl NIl

public limited Companies

Memberships / Chairmanships of NIl NIL

committees of other public companies
(includes only Audit Committee and

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

Number of shares held in the Company 4,07,842 NIL

Note: For other details such as number of meetings of the Board attended during the year, remuneration drawn and
relationship with other directors and key managerial personnel in respect of the above directors please refer to the Board’s
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date :31.07.2025 (Narendra D Shah)
Place: Vadodara Company Secretary & Compliance officer

ACS-7480
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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members of

CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 51st Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statement of Accounts for

the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Following figures summaries, the operational performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

1. Financial Statement:

Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

March, 2025 March, 2024

Revenue from Operations 5652.98 4889.43

Other Incomes 50.93 59.43

Total Revenue 5703.91 4948.86

Profit for the year  before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 443.14                  410.59

Less :Finance Cost 1.69 1.74

Less :Depreciation & Amortization Expense 53.86 60.18

Less :Provision for Taxation 94.50 98.00

Add: Provision for Deferred Tax 36.48 -49.26

Short/(Excess) Tax Provision 11.22 -8.18

Other Comprehensive Income 41.85 66.82

Net Profit 309.68 374.93

2. Dividend :

During the year under review, the Company has decided to plough back the profit for new projects as well as for operating

smooth working capital cycle, the company needs to arrange bank guarantee for securing finance, which the company is

arranging from their investment in mutual fund, the board therefore, does not recommend any dividend to the shareholders,

for the year under review.

3. Transfer to Reserve :

The Company does not propose to transfer any sum to its General Reserve.

4. Financial Performance and Operational Review:

During the financial year 2024-25,

i. Gross Sales of the Company for the year under review, reached to Rs. 5652.98 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 4889.43 lakhs

in the previous year, showing increase of 15.61% as compared to previous year.

ii. Net Profit after Tax, reached to Rs.267.83 lakhs as against Net Profit of Rs.308.11 lakhsof the previous year, showing

reduction in net profit of 13.07% as compared to previous year.

The Company’s other key performance indications are as under:

i. Cash Profit decreased by 12.72% to Rs.321.42 Lacs from Rs. 368.29 Lacs in previous year.

II. The Assets disposed off for FY 2024-25 was Rs. 26.92Lacs due to high wear and tear as against Rs.39.62 Lacs of the

previous year.

5. Change in the nature of business:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

6. Subsidiary Companies:

The Company does not have any subsidiary company.
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7. Adequacy of internal financial controls:

The Company has adequate and effective internal Financial control systems with regard to financial statements, having

assurance on authorizing, recording and reporting transactions of its operations in all material respects which provides

protection and safeguard against misuse or loss of assets of the Company. The Company has well established documentation

procedures covering financial and operational functions commensurate with the size and complexities of the organization.

Some of the salient features of the internal control system in place are:-

i. Following the statutory and applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

ii. Preparation of annual budget for production, operation and service functions and monitoring the same with actual

performance at regular intervals.

iii. All assets are properly recorded and procedures have been put in place to safeguard against any loss or unauthorized

use or disposal.

iv. Surprise checking of all departments, locations and functions at regular intervals.

v. The observations arising out of surprise checking are periodically reviewed at the Audit Committee meetings along with

follow up action.

vi. Periodic presentations are made to the Audit Committee on various operational and financial risks faced by the Company

and action plan of the Company to mitigate the same.

During the year, such controls were tested and upgraded and no reportable material weaknesses, variances, in the design

or operation were observed.

8. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

During the year under review, your Company has not directly or indirectly -

a) given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances envisaged in a contract of supply of

materials, if any;

b) given any guarantee or provided security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person; and

c) Acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate.

9. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year, were on arm’s length basis and during the

ordinary course of Company’s business, with prior approval of the Audit Committee and the Board, as required. The Company

has not entered into any contract, arrangement or transaction with any related party which could be considered as material

and exceeding the prescribed ceiling, as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, requiring the prior approval of the Members.

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which is already posted on the website of the Company

(www.conaratengineers.com).

All the related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as well as the Board for approval on a quarterly

basis. Omnibus approval was also obtained from the Audit Committee and the Board, on an annual basis, for repetitive

transactions.

Related party transactions under Accounting Standard – AS 18 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Prescribed Form No. AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished as Annexure – A to this report.

10. Directors’  Responsibility  Statement :

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm

that:

a. in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper

explanation relating to material departures, if any.

b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial

Year and of the Profit of the Company for that period.
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c. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for  preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal controls are

adequate and are operating effectively; and

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are

adequate and operating effectively.

11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company,

Mr. Jitendra Sura (DIN 00480172), retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

On the recommendation of Nominee and Remuneration Committee to Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting

held on 31st July, 2025, based on (i) outcome performance evaluation (2) recommendations of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and (iii) experience and significant contributions made by Mr. Nirmal Parikh, the Board of Directors

have approved  his re-appointment an Independent Director for the second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from 21st

September, 2025 to 20th September, 2030, subject to the approval of the shareholders

None of the Company’s Directors aredebarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or order by any

other competent authority.

None of the Directors of the Company, are disqualified from being appointed as a director specified in Section 164 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Brief profiles of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed and retires by rotation, are annexed to the Notice

convening Annual General Meeting.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge, as

required.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year under report, the following persons performed the roles of the Key Managerial Personnel of the

Company, as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Jitendra Sura - Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Jimish Sura - Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Narendra D. Shah - Company Secretary and Comp. Officer w.e.f 06.08.2024

There is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the financial year under report.

12. Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Company has received Declarations of Independence as stipulated under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013

from each of the Independent Directors confirming that he is not disqualified from appointing / continuing as Independent

Director as laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR Regulations. The

same are also displayed on the website of the Company www.conartengineers.com The Independent Director have complied

with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank maintained by Indian Institute of

Corporate Affairs (IICA). In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification

of Directors) Rules, 2014. The Company has received necessary declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company

confirming that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as

under Regulation 25 and 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances which may

affect their status as independent director during the year.

13. Board Evaluation:

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board, Committees and Individual

Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).
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The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the

criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee members on the

basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committees, attendance, prior study of materials given, participation at the

meetings, level and effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the Individual Directors

on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and Committee meetings like

preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In

addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the Board as a

whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-

executive Directors.  The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors,

at which the performance of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation

of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.

14. Familiarization Program for the Independent Directors:

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, 2015, the Company has put in place a familiarization program for

the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their roles, rights and responsibilities as Directors, the working of the

Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model etc.

15. Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration and Particulars of other details:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for Directors appointment and remuneration

including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The following attributes/

criteria for selection have been laid by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee:

• the candidate should possess the positive attributes such as leadership, entrepreneurship, business advisor or such

other attributes which in the opinion of the Committee are in the interest of the Company;

• the candidate should be free from any disqualification as provided under Sections 164 and 167 of the Companies Act,

2013;

• the candidate should meet the conditions of being independent as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and

Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges, in case of appointment as an independent director; and

• the candidate should possess appropriate educational qualification, skills, experience and knowledge in one or more

fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, corporate governance, technical operations,

infrastructure or such other areas or disciplines which are relevant for the Company’s business.

16. Number of Meetings of the Board:

During the year under review, Four (4) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th

November, 2024 and 13th February, 2025. wherein all the Directors were present.

17. Extract of Annual Return:

A copy of the Annual  Return  as  required under Section 92 (3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the  Act has been on the Company’s

website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under.

https://conaratengineers.com/annual-returns

As provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, the extract of annual return is given in Annexure–B in the prescribed Form MGT-

9, which forms part of this report.

18. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors,  with Mr. Sunil Vakil, as the Chairman and Mr.

Nirmal Parish & Jignesh Shah as the Member who met 4 Times during the year under review i.e. 30 th May, 2024, 13th August,

2024, 14thNovember, 2024 and 13th February, 2025 wherein all the Members were present and transacted the business as

per the terms of reference. The Committee meets the criteria laid down under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read

with Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,

2015
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19. Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the Financial position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial Statement relate and the date of the Report :

There were no material changes that have affected the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the

end of financial year on 31st  March, 2025 and till the date of this report .

20. Management Discussion and Analysis:

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation 2015,

the Management Discussion and Analysis has been given hereunder.

a. Industry Scenario/India key market trends :

Despite the challenges thrown up by continued  geopolitical conflicts between Russia-Ukraine War, Israel and Palestine

war, Iran & Israel attack and modest global growth, growing domestic demand, which has aided its strong growth.

India’s economy is a complex mix of agriculture, manufacturing and a rapidly growing service sector. Despite the

significant role of Agriculture, the sector faces challenges like low productivity and inadequate infrastructure and is

vulnerable to climatic conditions. Manufacturing varies from village industries to modern industries like pharma,

automobiles and textiles. The service sector, including IT and financial services, has seen rapid expansion, becoming

a major contributor to GDP.

b. Opportunities and Threats :

Macro-economic risks

Indian economy has become the fifth largest economy in the world. The major election uncertainties are out of the way

and likely announcement of rate cuts by central banks in west. But India will likely see improved capital flows boosting

private investments and a rebound in export.

c. Outlook :

Even outlook looks positive in FY 2025-26, the recent rapid rate hike may have impact on credit. It has been forcasted

that the agriculture sector may have positive  impact of El-Nino factor and monsoon will remain abnormal.

The Reserve Bank of India have declared repo rate cut from 6.50% in December, 2024 to 5.75% in June 2025, which will

have positive impact on reduction in rate of interest for home loans, which will increase in demand for home loan. At the

same time, reduction in borrowing cost of interest will have impact on increase in demand for working capital requirement

by industries.

d. Risks and concerns:

i. Risk related of Raw Materials: Risks associated with key procurement relationships include:

a. the availability of raw materials, more particularly Iron & Steel ;

b. the price of raw materials may be subject to material changes in world-wide pricing levels;

c. Very high input costs such as freight and electricity and frequent fluctuation in raw material  prices in  the

market ; and

d. key supplier relationships may be lost or impaired, contracts renewed on less favorable terms or exit of  key

suppliers from the market.

The Company plans well in advance to procure the raw materials from the  domestic reputed supplier located in different

parts of the country to mitigate risk relating to availability of raw materials.

e. Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

The Company’s internal audit system has been continuously monitored and updated to ensure that assets are

safeguarded, established regulations are complied with and pending issues are addressed promptly. The Audit Committee

makes a note of the audit observations and takes corrective/remedial actions wherever necessary. It also maintains

constant dialogue with statutory and internal Auditors to ensure that Internal Control system are operating effectively.

Based on its evaluation (as provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 18 of SEBI Listing

Regulations), the Audit Committee has concluded that as of 31st March, 2025, the Internal Financial Controls were

adequate and operating effectively.

M/s. Govind Prasad & Co, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors  formed an opinion that the Company has, in all

material respect, an internal financial control with reference to financial statements of the Company and such internal

financial reporting are operating effectively. The criteria for financial reporting as established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control as stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a report on the internal controls over

financial reporting as defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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f. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

Analysis of the profit and loss statement

Revenues :Revenue from operations reported 15.61% increase from Rs. 4889.43 Lacs in 2023-24 to Rs. 5652.98 Lacs

in 2024-25

Expenses : Total expenses of the Company increased by  15.57% from Rs. 4600.19 Lacs in 2023-24  to Rs. 5316.32

Lacs in 2024-25 due to corresponding increase in sales volume.

Analysis of the Balance Sheet Sources of funds.

- The net worth of the Company increased from Rs. 2902.80 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs. 3212.48 Lacs as on

31stMarch, 2025 owing to increase in reserves and surpluses.

- Other Expenses  costs of the Company increased from Rs.2136.85  Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.3203.23

Lacs as on 31st March, 2025 due to  increase in professional fees, payment to sub-contractor and change in the

head of expense.

Application of funds.

Other non-current assets.

Other non-current assets of the Company increased from Rs. 8.39  Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.15.36 Lacs as on

31st March, 2025.

Working Capital Management.

- Current assets of the Company increased from Rs. 2690.56 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.3440.81 Lacs as on

31st March, 2025. The current ratios of the Company stood at 3.56in the year under review as compared to 5.95 in

2023-24 shows (Decreased during the year as compared to previous year) sufficient margin for working capital. As

the Company has not borrowed funds from banks or financial institutions.

- Inventories including raw materials and work in progress among others increased by 116.25% from Rs. 417.76

Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs. 903.42 Lacs as on 31st March, 2025. Inventory cycle days in FY 2023-24 was43

days of turnover as against 40 days equivalent in 2024-25.

- Trade receivables decreased by 15.81% from Rs, 1031.51 Lacs on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.868.40 Lacs as on 31st

March, 2025 which are less than a year accepted as industry norm. More than 95.50% of the receivables are

considered good. The Company debtors’ turnover cycle is 61 days during 2024-25 compared to 62 days in FY

2023-24. The trade receivables recovery is maintained at reasonable level.

- Cash & bank balance of the Company decreased from Rs.257.96 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.581.92 Lacs

as on 31st March, 2025.

Key Ratios

Particulars F. Y. 2024-25 F. Y. 2023-24

Current Ratio 3.56 5.95

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00

Debt-Service Coverage Ratio NA NA

Return on Equity Ratio 0.09 0.11

Inventory Turnover Ratio 8.49 9.24

Trade Receivable Ratio 5.95 5.93

Trade Payable Ratio 6.14 7.30

Net Capital Turnover Ratio 2.40 2.34

Net Profit Ratio 0.05 0.06

Return on Capital Employed 0.12 0.12

g. Human Resources/Industrial Relations:

Employees are our greatest strength and the foundation of our Company. They play a pivotal role in offering better

product quality and services to our customer. We ensure that employees gain ample opportunities for personal and

professional growth. High quality recruitment supports the talent management practices of the Company. The Company

continues to foster a high performance culture by recognizing good performers and providing them with career enhancing

opportunities.
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h. Cautionary Statement:

Statements made in this section describes the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations which  may

be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Forward looking

statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee   that

these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized by the Company. Actual results could differ

materially from those expressed or implied due to the influence of external factors which are beyond the control of the

Company. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statement

on the basis of any subsequent development, information or events.

21. Remuneration Policy:

The Objective and broad framework of the Company’s Remuneration Policy is to consider and determine the remuneration

based on fundamental principles of payment for performance, for potential and for growth. The Remuneration policy reflects

on certain guiding principles of the Company  such as  aligning remuneration with the longer term  interests of the Company

and its shareholders, promoting a culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage to corporate and individual performance and

emphasizing on line expertise and market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent . It also ensures the effective

recognition of performance and encourages a focus on achieving superior operational results. The Nomination and

Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration of Directors and key managerial Personnel which is approved by

the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, where necessary. The level and composition of

remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors, Key Managerial personnel and

other employees of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The relationship of remuneration to  performance

should be clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial personnel

and senior management personnel should involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term

performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its Goals. The Remuneration policy is placed on the

Company’s web site www.conaratengineers.com

Information about elements of remuneration package of Individual Directors is provided in the Annual Return as provided

under Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 which is placed on the website of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key managerial Personnel and any other employees of the Company, draw remuneration more than

Rs. 68.00 Lacs per annum or Rs. 5.75 Lakhs per month,  hence being not applicable, details of the employees,  as are

required under Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of  Managerial Personnel), Rules 2014 are  not furnished.

22. Risk Management:

The Company has established Enterprise Risk Management process to manage risks with the objective of maximizing

shareholders value.

The Audit Committee of the Board of the Company has been entrusted with the task to frame, implement and monitor the risk

management plan for the Company and it is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness

with an additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions

are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

23. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The Company has already constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with Section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013. However, in view of inadequate profit, the Company is not required to pursued any initiatives on

CSR activity. Internal accruals generated by way of profits, are being spent on ongoing/ new projects activities conceived  by

the Company.

For the Company, Social Responsibility is a key element of accountability and it will continue to strive in its behaviour and

action, being a level of minimum statutory compliance. The Company believes in the sustainable growth and prosperity of its

stakeholders and views its responsibilities not only as business responsibilities but as Ethical and Social as well.

24. Safety, Environment and Health:

The Company’s commitment to excellence in Health and Safety is embedded in the Company’s core values. The Company

has a stringent policy which drives all employees to continuously break new ground in safety management for the benefit of

people, property, environment and the communities where we operate on sites.

The Company respects human rights, values its employees and their communities. The Company considers safety, environment

and health as the management responsibility. Regular employee training programs are in place throughout the Company on

Safety, Environment and Health and has well identified and widely covered safety management system in place for ensuring,

not only the safety of employees but surrounding population of the works as well.

25. Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. The Policy aims to provide protection

to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or
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incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. All employees

of the Company, those of contractors as well as trainees are covered under this Policy. The policy of the Company is placed

on the website of the Company (www.conartengineers.com)

No complaint was received from any employee during the financial year 2024-2025, which needs redressal.

26. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy:

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the Company is required to establish an effective

Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns.

The Company has a Whistle-blower Policy in place since 2004 to encourage and facilitate employees to report concerns

about unethical behaviour, actual/ suspected frauds and violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The

Policy has been suitably modified to meet the requirements of Vigil Mechanism under the Companies Act, 2013. The policy

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who avail the same and provides for direct access to the

Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The policy also establishes adequate mechanism to enable employees report instances

of leak of unpublished price sensitive information. The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the implementation of the

Whistle-Blower Policy.

The Company has disclosed information about the establishment of the Whistle Blower Policy on i ts

websitewww.conartengineers.com. During the year, no person has been declined access to the Audit Committee, wherever

desired.

27. Code of Conduct:

The  Board  has  laid  down  a  code  of  conduct  for   board members  and   senior   management  personnel of the Company.

The code incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The said code of

conduct is posted on Company’s website www.conartengineers.com . . The Board members and senior management

personnel have affirmed compliance with the said code of conduct. A declaration with regard to compliance of Code, is NOT

furnished, in view of its non-applicability.

28. Prevention of Insider Trading:

The Board has adopted a revised Code of Prevention of Insider Trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015. The same has been placed on the website of the Company www.conartengineers.com. All the Directors,

senior management employees and other employees who have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the

Company are governed by this code. During the year under Report, there has been due compliance with the said code of

conduct for prevention of insider trading.

29. Corporate Governance Report:

The Report on Corporate Governance as required under Section  204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34 read

with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, forms part of this Annual Report is enclosed as Annexure  E.

The requisite certificate from M/s. Sanjay Dholakia, Practicing Company Secretaries confirming compliance with the conditions

of Corporate Governance as stipulated is attached to the Report on Corporate Governance.

30. Deposits from Public:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from public during the year under review and that there were

no outstanding / unclaimed or unpaid deposits as at the close of financial year.

31. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Company is serious in conserving energy by reducing consumption of power by implementing closed monitoring over

plan running and adequate maintenance of electric components of plants and other machinery.

Technology absorption:  Your Company has not taken new technology for absorption and hence it has neither imported any

technology nor made any expenditure on research and developments. The Company does not carry out any research and

development activities.

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

There was no inflow or outflow of foreign exchange, during the year under review.

32. Particulars of Employees and related disclosures:

No employee or Directors  is being paid any remuneration exceeding Rs. 8,50,00/- p.m. and/or  Rs. 102 Lakhs p.a. However

disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure E.

33. Other Disclosures:

a) The properties and insurable interests of the Company including buildings, Plants & Machineries and Stocks, have

been adequately insured.

b) The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits.
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c) The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees

d) In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Director re-appointed is a person of integrity and possess expertise,

experience and proficiency.

e) No significant or material order were passed by the Regulations or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern

status and Company’s operations in future.

f) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

g) The Company has not appointed any woman at the construction site level or limited woman employees are working  in

office since long. The Company has not faced any difficulty in appointing in the office observing their gentle behaviour,

h) No application was made nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy

i) No settlement has been done with bank or financial institutions.

34. Share Capital:

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as at 31stMarch, 2025 is Rs. 3,14,00,000. The equity share of Rs.10/- each

was sub-divided into 2(Two) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid from Record Date i.e. on 19.02.2025. The equity shares

are traded at Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company currently has no outstanding shares issued with differential rights,

sweat equity or ESOS.

35. Auditors:

(i) Statutory Auditors:

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s.Govind Prasad & Co, Chartered

Accountants Firm Registration Number (FRN): 114360W as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at

their 48thAnnual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2022 to hold office for a term  of five (5)  years i.e. till the

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2026-27.

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remark.

The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

(ii) Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to amended Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, w.e.f. 01st April, 2025, every Listed Company on the

recommendation of the Board of Directors shall appoint or re-appoint (i) an Individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more

than two terms of five consecutive years with the approval of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the above, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31st July, 2025 considered, approved and

recommended to the Shareholders of the Company for their approval, the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dholakia, proprietor

of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia  & Associates, (Peer Reviewed firm) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company at the ensuing 51st

Annual General Meeting for a term of 5 consecutive years, to conduct Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Audit

Report under Section 204 of the Act and other relevant laws and regulations. Your Directors commends for his appointment

for five years in the Company. None of the Directors or KMPs of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested

in this appointment

The Secretarial Audit Report of Mr. Mr. Sanjay Dholakia of M/s. Sanjay Dholakia and Associates, Practicing Company

Secretaries for the financial year 2024-25, is annexed herewith  as Annexure  F. which contain qualified remarks

regarding penalty to be levied on non-submission of documents. The Company has submitted the explanation against

qualified remarks and is hopeful that matter to be resolved favourably. The Company has complied with the applicable

provisions of the SEBI    (LODR) and Secretarial Standards.

(iii) Internal Auditors:

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. Parikh Shah Chotalia& Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the Internal

Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-26

(iv) Cost Auditors

The provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act with regard to maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the Company

hence the company has not appointed any cost auditor.

36. STATEMENT THAT COMPANY HAS COMPLIED WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. It ensures

that all eligible women employees are provided with the benefits and entitlements mandated under the Act, including paid

maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity leave.

The Company is committed to fostering a supportive and inclusive workplace and continues to uphold all applicable labour

laws related to employee welfare and social security.



Conart Engineers Limited
R

20

37. Acknowledgement:

The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the continued support received from various clients, vendors and

suppliers and Bankers, Government Authorities, Employees at all levels and Stakeholders, in furthering the interest of the

Company.

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date:  31.07.2025 Jitendra Sura
Place: Vadodara Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure II

Management Discussion  and Analysis Report

Company Overview

The company was over 50 years of expertise in the engineering and construction sector offering engineering and construction

solution. The company has proven track  record of delivering projects in industry

Residential Segment

The Indian residential segment has undergone major structural transformations over the last decade. The sector saw multiple

challenges including demonetization, implementation of Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Real Estate (Regulation and

Development) Act, 2016 (RERA), Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) crisis and the COVID-19 pandemic. However,

today, the sector is touching new highs with the support of strong policy interventions such as RERA which have made the sector

more transparent and customer centric; a strong economic momentum and an ardent desire of owning and upgrading homes. As

per the recent report, published by Knight Frank and Confederation of Indian Industry, India’s urbanization rate over the next

decade is expected to reach 42.50% from 36.50%, which implies a significant rise in demand of households and expansion of

cities, across the country.

It is estimated that the share of leading developers has almost doubled in the last 7 years. This trend     is expected to continue as

the industry grows.

Office segment

The office segment witnessed robust growth in activity(ies), as an outcome of robust domestic growth as well as renewed demand

from the occupiers.

The luxury segment continued to experience rising resurgence, primarily driven by rising income levels, aspirational lifestyle and

growing consumption trends in the country. Realizing the notable growth in the luxury segment, numerous foreign retailers have

entered and continue to explore the country to capitalize on this growth. It is expected that this segment should continue to exhibit

strong growth momentum, though demand seems to be primarily driven for quality malls at established locations.

Indian infrastructure industry

India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers

in the world over the next 10 to 15 years back by its robust democracy and strong partnership.

India’s economy is projected to grow by 6.6% in 2025, driven by robust consumption, investment and strong export growth in

services and goods While global challenges persists,  India’s focus on infrastructure and export growth fuels optimism.

Capital expenditure on infrastructure development is expected to have strong multiplier effect on growth in the coming years. in

India the public sector continuous to play a pivotal  role in funding large scale infrastructure projects,  physical and digital

connectivity and social infrastructure including improvement in sanitation and water supply in the medium run increased capital

spending on infrastructure and asset building projects is set  to increase growth multiplier

Outlook

Under the union budget 2025-26 the Centre has re-emphasized its strategic focus on Viksit Bharat 2047 andinfrastructure

development In order to foster private sector engagement,  the infrastructure related ministry will now come up with  a three year

pipeline of the projects in the PPP mode.  The Indian government with also set up an Urban Challenge Fund of rupees 1 trillion to

implement the proposals for ‘Cities as growth Hubs’, ‘Creative Redevelopment of Cities’ and ‘Water and Sanitation’. The

centre will also launch the second asset  monetization program for 2025-30 to mobilize funds up to rupees 10 trillion to fund new

projects

Development of infrastructure has a multiplier effect on the demand and efficiency of transport and increase commercial and

entrepreneurship opportunities.

A new Asset monetization plan is set to unlock value for public assets, while the three year pipeline for PPP model projects will

encourage private sector engagement. Plan for asset monetization for 2025-30 to be launched to plough back capital of INR 10

Lakh crore in new project.

PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

Our Company is actively executing industrial projects in private sector. Most of these projects are in nearby area. The Company

has completed seven Industrial Projects during the year under review and seven projects are under development stage and will

be completed in – 2025-26.
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OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Particulars Amount Rs. in Lacs Remarks

EBITDA 443.14

PAT 309.68

EPS 4.27

SHARE CAPITAL 314.00

DEBT -

NET WORTH 3212.48

FIXED ASSETS 522.87

INVENTORY 903.42

DEBT EQUITY RATIO -

CURRENT RATIO 3.56 Above Average

RETURN ON EQUITY 0.09 Marginal Low compared to Pr year

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO - No Borrowing

Highlights of Financials of 2024-25

The net worth of the Company increased from Rs. 2902.80 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs. 3212.48 Lacs as on 31stMarch, 2025

owing to increase in reserves and surpluses.

Current assets of the Company increased from Rs. 2690.56 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs.3440.81 Lacs as on 31st March,

2025. The current ratios of the Company stood at 3.56 in the year under review as compared to 5.95 in 2023-24.The Company has

not borrowed funds from banks or financial institutions.

Inventories including raw materials and work in progress among others increased by 116.25% from Rs. 417.76  Lacs as on 31st

March, 2024 to Rs. 903.42 Lacs as on 31st March, 2025. Inventory cycle days in FY 2023-24 was  43 days of turnover as against

40 days equivalent in 2024-25.
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Annexure III

Form No. AOC - 2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in

Subsection(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis :

(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. Name(s) of the related Nature of Value of the Date(s) of

No. party and nature of Contracts/ Contracts or Approval

relationship arrangements or arrangements or

transactions transactions

1 Jitendra Sura Key Managerial Personnel Rent 54,000/-

2. Jitendra Sura HUF KMP is member of HUF Rent 2,34,000/-

3. Prachi Desai Relative of KMP Rent 4,32,000/-

4. Clue Realestate LLP Where Company is a Partner Investment in 1,20,000/-

Marketing Enterprises Partnership Firm

LLP Loan to Partnership Firm (1,20,000)

Share of Profit / Loss 23,172/-

5 M/s. Edilife Lifespace LLP where company is a partner Loan to Partnership Firm 90,00,000

LLP (Balance as on

31.03.2025

Rs.1,40,00,000)

Note:
(i) Duration of all contracts or arrangements or transactions were from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022.

(ii) The Board was approved the above related party transactions on its meeting hold on 23rd June, 2021.

(iii) Terms of contract for arrangements or transactions were mutually agreed by the Company and related party.

On behalf of the Board
Sd/-

Place : Vadodara Jitendra Shankerlal Sura
Date : 31.07.2025 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 0480172
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Annexure II
Disclosures in Board’s Report as per provisions of Section 197of Companies Act, 2013 and read with Rule 5(1) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2017

1 Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of the Company for the Financial

Year 2024-25.

Sr. Name of Director Category of Directors Ratio

No.

1 Mr. Jitendra S Sura Chairman & Managing Director 8.60 : 1

2 Mr. Jimish J Sura Executive Director (Finance) & CFO 5.56 : 1

2 Percentage increase in remuneration of Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any,

in the Financial Year:

Sr. Name of Director Category of Directors % of Increase

No.

1 Mr. Jitendra S Sura Chairman & Managing Director -

2 Mr. Jimish J Sura Executive Director (Finance) & CFO -

3 Mr. Narendra D Shah Company Secretary -

3 Percentage increase in the median  remuneration of The median remuneration of the employees in

employees in the Financial Year: F.Y. 2024-25 was increased by  5 %

4 Number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company: There were 60 employees as on 31st March, 2025.

5 Average percentile increase in salaries of employees other The average percentile increase in the remuneration of

than Managerial Personnel for the Financial Year and employees compared to increase in remuneration of Key

justification thereof of there were any exceptional Managerial Personnel is in line with benchmark study and

circumstances for increase: the performance of the Company over a period of time. There

is no exceptional increase in the Remuneration.

6 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration We confirm.

policy of the Company.

Note:Our Company is in the construction industry;so we have to work as site by site basis and need to hire the employees for the

specified site and for the specified period of the construction of the site in the designation of Site Engineers, Site Supervisor, Site

Storekeeper, etc. In the present scenario of the construction industry, the employees are not interested in the Provident Fund,

ESIC and other benefits. 50% of the total employees are hired on contractual basis; they are paid higher wages than permanent

employees. In the above disclosure, we calculate the ratio with the employees which are on permanent basis.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

1. Company Philosophy:

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. It pictures how an organization is

managed. Timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding financial situation, performance, ownership and

management of Company is an important part of corporate governance.

The management of the Company is making untiring efforts within the framework of effective accountability, which in turn

enables the conversion of opportunities into achievements for the betterment of the Company and its stakeholders. Systems

are being put into place to ensure effective strategic planning, financial plans and budgets, integrity of internal controls with

emphasis on transparency and full disclosure on the various facts of the Company’s operations, its functioning and its

financial and compliance with all statutory/regulatory requirements of laws.

2. Board of Directors:

The Company has an active, experienced, diverse and a well-informed Board. The Board along with its Committees undertakes

its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy.

The Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors which is in conformity with Regulation

17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Sections 149 and 152 of the Act. The Board periodically evaluates the need for

change in its composition and size.

In terms of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, at least 50% of the Board should comprise of Non-Executive

Independent Directors with at least one-Woman Director. Out of total 6 Directors as on March 31, 2025, the Board is

constituted with 3 Independent Directors i.e. 50% of the Board. The Company has 1 Women Director on the Board as of the

said date  who is holding her office as Non- Executive -Director.

The Chairman & Managing Director and oneChief Executive Officer & CFO are the Executive Directors of the Company

looking after the day to day management of your Company, belonging to the Company’s promoter group. The remaining

Non-Executive Directors comprising of Three Independent Directors, possess requisite qualifications and experience in

general corporate management, finance, banking and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the

Company in their capacity as Directors.

Apart from reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties and the remuneration (sitting fees) that

Directors would be entitled to under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) as Non-Executive Directors, none of these Directors

has any other material pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors, its Senior

Management which  are in their judgement, would affect their independence. None of the Directors, other than those

belonging to the promoter group of the Company, are inter-se related to each other.

The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there were no material

financial and / or commercial transactions between them and the Company that could have a potential conflict of interest with

the Company at large.

A. Composition of the Board:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 165(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, none of the Directors holds Directorships in more than 20 Companies (Public or Private), 10

public companies, Membership of Board Committees (Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees) in excess of 10

and Chairmanship of Board Committees (Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees) in excess of 5. None of the

Directors serve as Independent Director in more than 7 Listed companies. None of the Director who serves as Whole

Time Director in any listed company serves as Independent Director in more than 3 listed companies.

The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors have been disclosed on the website of the Company-

www.conartengineers.com. The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the Companies Act,

2013 and the rules made thereunder.

B. Board Procedure.

The Company Secretary tracks and monitors the Board and its Committees proceedings to ensure that the terms of

reference / charters are adhered to, decisions are properly recorded in the minutes and actions on the decisions are

tracked. The terms of reference / charters are amended and updated from time to time in order to keep the functions and

role of the Board and its Committees at par with the changing statutes. Meeting effectiveness is ensured through

detailed agenda, circulation of material in advance and as per statutory timelines, detailed presentations at the Meetings

and tracking of action taken reports at every Meeting. Additionally, based on the agenda, Meetings are attended by

invitees which bring in the requisite accountability and also provide developmental inputs.

The Board plays a critical role in the strategy development of the Company. To enable the Board to discharge its

responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions, the Managing Director apprises the Board on the overall

performance of the Company every quarter.
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The Board periodically reviews the strategy, annual business plan, business performance of the Company , technology

and innovation, quality, customer centricity, capital expenditure budgets and risk management, safety and environment

matters. Amongst other things, the Board also reviews the compliance reports of the laws applicable to the Company,

internal financial controls and financial reporting systems, adoption of quarterly / half-yearly / annual results, corporate

restructuring, transactions pertaining to purchase / disposal of property, minutes of the Meetings of the Audit and other

Committees of the Board.

Number of Board Meetings held and the dates of the Board Meeting.:

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2025,  Four  Board Meetings were held  on 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024,

14th  November, 2024 and 13th  February, 2025. The time gap between any two meetings was not exceeding one

hundred and twenty days.

Details of composition and category of Directors, attendance at the Board Meeting, Annual General Meeting and
shareholding of each Director :

Name of Directors Category No. of Board Attendance No of equity

Meetings held at the shares  held in

and attended last AGM the Company

during the

financial year

Mr. Jitendra Sura, Promoter, Executive 2 out of 4 Yes 4,07,842

Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Jimish Sura Promoter, Executive 4 out of 4 Yes 13,24,212

Chief Executive Officer & CFO

Mrs. Pooja Sura Non-Executive – 3 out of 3 Yes 1,00,000

Non Independent Diretor

Ms. Deepti Sharma Non-Executive Independent 2 out of 2 Yes Nil

Mr. Sunil Vakial Non-Executive 2 out of 2 Yes Nil

Independent Director

Mr. Niramal Parikh Non-Executive Independent 4  out of 4 Yes Nil

Mr. Jignesh Shah Non-Executive Independent 4  out of 4 Yes Nil

* The above shareholding as at 31st March, 2025 is in respect of shares which are held by Directors as a first  holder

and in which  shares they have beneficial interest.

* As required by Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, this disclosure Includes memberships/chairmanships in all

public limited companies’, whether listed or not, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee only.

* Except Executive Directors, no other Directors are related inter se.

Name of the entities where the person is a director and the category of directorship in other Companies:

Sr No Name of Director Name of Entity Category of Directorship

1. Jitendra Sura Nil Nil

2. Jimish Sura Sura Infra Structure & Non Executive - Director

Management Private Limited

3. Mr. Sunil Vakil Shivam Autotech Limited Non Executive , Independent

Amity Soft Technology Pvt. Ltd Non Executive , Independent

Woleco India Pvt Ltd Non Executive , Independent

International Hotel Supply (India) Pvt Ltd Non Executive - Director

Eimco Elecon (India) Limited Non Executive , Independent

Advance Sys-Tek Limited Non Executive , Independent

Munjal Auto Industires Limited Non Executive , Independent

Dinesh Remedies Limited Non Executive , Independent

4. Mr. Nimral Parikh NIL Nil

5. Mr. Jignesh Shah Standard Belex India Private Ltd Executive Director

6. Mrs. Pooja Sura Sura Infra Structure & Non Executive - Director

Management Private Limited
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Annual Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees, the Chairman and the individual Directors was

carried out for FY 2024-25.  As part of the evaluation process, the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the

Chairman and the Board was conducted by the Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the respective

Committees and that of Independent and Non-Independent Directors was done by  the Board excluding the Director

being evaluated.

         C.    Director seeking re-appointment

In accordance with the Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, one-third of the Retiring (Executive Directors) Directors

retires by rotation and, if eligible, offers for re-election at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders. Accordingly, Mr.

Jitendra Sura, retires in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) as well as the Board have recommended his  appointment as director

liable to retire by rotation at the 51st Annual General meeting.

Mr. Nirmal Parikh was appointed as an Independent Director at the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company held

on 25th September, 2020, the shareholders had approved the appointment of Mr. Nirmal Parikh (DIN : 07507113) as an

Independent Director to hold office for a period of 5(five) consecutive years up to 24th September, 2025. His tenure as an

Independent Director is being expired on 20th September, 2025.

On the recommendations of nominee and Remuneration Committee and at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on

31st July, 2025, based on (i) outcome performance evaluation and (ii) experience and significant contributions made by

Mr. Nirmal Parikh, have approved his re-appointment an Independent Director for the second term of 5 (Five consecutive

years from 21st September, 2025 to 20th September, 2030, subject to the approval of the shareholders.

Mr. Nirmal Parikh is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has

consented to act as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has also received declaration from him that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under

Section 149 of the Act and the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Nirmal Parikh fulfil the conditions for

re-appointment as Independent Director as specified in the Act and Listing Regulations. Mr. Nirmal Parikh is independent

of the management.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter—se :

Mr. Jitendra Sura, Chairman & Managing Director is the father of Mr. Jimish Sura, Executive Director & CFO

Mr. Pooja Sura is a wife of Mr. Jimish Sura, Executive Director & CFO and Daughter in Law of Mr. jitendra Sura –

Chairman & Managing Director

None of the other Directors are related to each other.

Changes in the Directorship for the year under review

The First term of office, as Independent Director, of Mrs. Deepti Sharma (DIN : 03630613) ended on conclusion of 50 th

Annual General Meeting i.e. 16.09.2024. Due to her pre-occupancy with other assignments, she expressed her inability

to continue with the Company for second term as an Independent Director. The Board placed on record its appreciation

for contribution of Mrs. Deepti Sharma during her association with the Company.

Upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board had considered and approved the

appointment of Mr. Sunil Vakil (DIN: 02527630), as Independent Director or a term of 5 (Five) years starting from 13th

August, 2024. The appointment was approved by the Shareholders at the 50th Annual General Meeting held on 16th

September, 2024.

A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors:

The Board considers that the following core skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors are required in the

context of  its business and its sector for it to function effectively-Technical, Manufacturing, Marketing, Commercial,

Regulatory, finance, legal and general management. In the opinion of the Board, these skills / expertise / competence

are actually available with its Board of Directors.
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Skills / Expertise / Competence of the Board of Directors Names of the Directors who have such skills /
That are required in the context of business of the Company expertise / competence

Technical Mr. Jitendra Sura & Mr. Jimish Sura & Mr.Jignesh Shah

Commercial & Marketing Mr. Jitendra Sura & Mr. Jimish Sura

Finance  Mr. Jimish Sura

Legal & General Management Mr. Jimish Sura & Ms Deepti Sharma

Regulatory Mr. Jimish Sura & Ms Deepti Sharma

Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfil the conditions specified in these
regulations  and are independent of the management.:

It is confirmed that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

Detailed reasons for the resignation of any independent director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure along
with a  confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided.:

During the financial year under report, none of the Independent Directors have resigned from the Board of Directors of

the Company.

D. Audit Committee:

Brief description of terms of reference :

The terms of reference to Audit Committee, inter-alia, covers all the matters specified under Section 177 of the Companies,

Act, 2013 and also all the matters listed under Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations such as oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process; recommending the

appointment/re-appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory auditors; review and monitor the

Auditors independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; approval of transactions with related

parties; sanctioning of loans and investments; evaluation of internal financial control and risk management system;

reviewing with the management annual financial statements and Auditors report thereon; quarterly financial statements

and other matters as covered under role of Audit Committee in Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations. The Audit Committee has powers, inter-alia, to investigate any activity within its terms of

reference and to seek information from any employee of the Company / Company’s  subsidiaries as well as seek outside

legal and professional advice.

The Audit committee reviews all the information that is required to be mandatorily reviewed by it under the corporate

governance.

Composition, Name of Chairman and Members:

The Audit Committee comprises of 3 Independent Non-Executive  Directors,  with Mr. Sunil Vakil, as the Chairman and

Mr. Nirmal Parish & Jignesh Shah as the Members. The terms of reference of the Committee cover the matter specified

for Audit Committee under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act,2025, as stated above. The Audit

Committee was reconstitututed because of non-continuity of Mrs. Deepti Sharma as an Independent Director for second

term of office.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and other executive directors and relevant Senior Management persons are

invited to attend the meeting of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

Ms. Deepti Sharma, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 16 th

September, 2024.

Meeting and attendance during the financial year:

Four (4) meeting of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, . The date of these

meetings are 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 13th February, 2025.
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The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is given below.

Name of Directors No of Meeting held No. of  Meeting Attended

Mr. Sunil Vakil 2 2

Ms. Deepti Sharma 2 2

Mr. Nirmal Parikh 4 4

Mr. jignesh Shah 4 4

E. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Brief description of terms of reference:

i. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the

directors, key managerial personnel, senior management personnel and other employees;

ii. for every appointment of an independent Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate

the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare the

description of role and  capabilities required of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for

appointment as Independent  Director shall have the capabilities identified in such description;

iii.  formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;

iv. devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

v. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and persons who may be appointed in senior management

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors their appointment, remuneration

and removal;

vi. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent directors, on the basis of the report of

performance evaluation of independent directors;

vii. administer and superintend the Company’s Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS); and

viii.    recommend to the board remuneration payable to senior managerial personnel of the Company.

ix. The Company has formulated Remuneration Policy which is available on the website of the Company-

www.conartengineers.com .

Composition, Name of Chairman and Members & Terms of Reference:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors with Mr. Jignesh

Shah as the Chairman and Ms.Deepti Sharma & Mr. Nirmal Parikh, as the members. The terms of reference of the

Committee cover the matters specified for Nomination and Remuneration Committee under the SEBI Listing Regulations,

2015 and the Companies Act. Jignesh Shah, Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present at the

last Annual General Meeting held on 16th September, 2024. The Nominee and Remuneration Committee was

reconstitututed because of non-continuity of Mrs. Deepti Sharma as an Independent Director for second term of office

Meeting and attendance during the financial year:

Two (2) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the financial year ended 31st March,

2025 on 13th August, 2024 and 14th November, 2024 and all the three Independent Directors, members of the Committee

were remained present.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted the following policies which are displayed on the website

of the  Company:

i. Formulation of the criteria relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other

employees.

ii. Performance criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity

iv. Oversee the familiarization programs for directors

v. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and persons who may be appointed in senior management

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.
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Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent

Directors, which includes parameters like knowledge, skills, professional conduct, duties, role and functions,

independence etc. Performance criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board is displayed on the

Company’s website.

F. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee :

Name of Non-Executive Director heading the committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Directors with Mr. Nirmal  Parikh, as the

Chairman,  Mr. Sunil Vakil and  Mr. Jignesh Shah as members. The terms of reference of the Committee cover the

matters specified for Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Companies

Act. Mr. Nirmal Parikh, Chairman of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was present at the last Annual General

Meeting held on 16th September, 2024. Mr. Narendra D Shah, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the

Company. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was reconstitututed because of non-continuity of Mrs. Deepti

Sharma as an Independent Director for second term of office

The committee monitors share transfers, transmissions and other shareholders related activities including redressal of

investor grievances. Details of share transfers / transmissions and other shareholders related activities including investor

grievances and its redressal  are also discussed regularly in the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Meetings held and attendance during the financial year 2024-25

Four (4) meeting of the Stakeholder Relation Committee were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

The date of these meetings are 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 13th February, 2025 and all

the three Independent Directors, members of the Committee were remain present viz Nirmal Parikh,  the Chairman, and

Mr. Sunil Vakil  and Mr. Jignesh Shah, as the Members. of the Company a attended the Meeting.

The Company did not receive any complaint during the year under review and no complaint is pending for redressal.

3. Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:

Non Executive Directors:

All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the listed entity shall be disclosed in
the annual report .:

During the financial year under report, the non-executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the

Company.

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors :

The non-executive Directors are paid only sitting fees and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred for attending

the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof.

Details of payments made to Non-Executive Directors in the Financial Year 2024-25 are as under:
              (Rs. In Lacs)

Name of Non Executive Independent Directors Sitting Fees paid Commission Paid

Ms. Deepti Sharma 62,000 Nil

Mr. Jignesh Shah 1,81,000 Nil

Mr. Nirmal Parikh 2,12,000 Nil

Mr. Sunil Vakil 1,50,000 NIL

Total 6,05,000 Nil

The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is based on the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Details of payments made to  Executive Directors in the Financial Year 2024-25 are as under.:

Executive Directors :

(i) The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors for the financial year 2023-24 is given below.

Rs. In lacs

Name & Designation of Tenure Salary  & Contribution to Benefits & Total

Executive Director Commission Superannuation Perquisites

Fund

Mr. Jitendra Sura-Chairman 3 years from 1st 27,30,000 — 43,624 27,73,624

& Managing Director November 2021 to

31st October, 2025

extended to 31st

October, 2027

Mr. Jimish Sura 3 years from 1st 31,84,980 7,93,800 3,07,463 42,86,243

Executive Director & CFO November 2021 to

31st October, 2025

extended upto 31st

October, 2027

Total 59,14,980 7,93,800 3,51,087 70,59,867

* Fixed Components.

Notes :

(i) The Executive Directors and the Company are entitled to terminate the service contracts by giving not less than one

months’ notice in writing to the other party.

(ii.) The remuneration paid to the Executuve Directors are within the limits prescribed under the applicable provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Corporate Governance.

(iii.) Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance criteria. The required

details are given in the table above.

(iv.)  Service contracts, notice period, severance fees:

The appointment of Managing Directors and Executive Directors is contractual and is generally for a period of  3

years. Either party is entitled to terminate agreement by giving not less than 30 days notice in writing, as the case

may be, to the other party. There is no separate provision for payment of severent fee in the agreements signed by

the Company with them.

(v.)  Stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over

which exercisable.

The Company currently has no outstanding stock options issued.
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4. General Body Meeting :

The details of the location and time where the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held are  as under.

Financial Year Location Date Special Resolution Passed

2023-24 Through Video Conferencing / Monday, 16th September, - Re-appointment of Mr. Jitendra Sura

Other Audio Visual Means 2024 at 3.00 p.m as Managing Director

- Re-appointment of Mr. Jimish Sura

as Executive Director

– Finance & CFO

- Appointment of Mr. Sunil Vakil as an

Independent Director

- Adoption of new set of Memorandum

of Association of the Company

- Adoption of New set of Articles of

Association of the Company

- Approval for Alteration of Object

Clause of Memorandum of

Association of the Company-

2022-23 Through Video Conferencing / Tuesday, 26th September, 1. Variation / revision in the terms and

Other Audio Visual Means 2023 at 3.30 p.m. conditions of the remuneraiton of Mr.

Jitendra Sura

2021-22 Through Video Conferencing / Tuesday, the 27thh September, NIL

Other Audio Visual Means 2022 at 3.00 p.m.

All the resolutions including special resolutions set out in the respective notices calling the AGM were passed by the

shareholders.

a) Any Special Business proposed to be passed resolution at the ensuing Annual General Meeting .:

There is one proposal to pass Special Resolutions at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, as are enumerated in the

Notice convening ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Date of AGM Special Business, to pass Special Resolution

b) Whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings.:

Details of special resolutions passed in the previous 3 Annual General Meetings are given in the table above.

Date of AGM Matter of Special Resolutions                      For                   Against

No. of Votes % of Votes No. of Votes % of Votes

16-09-2024 Re-appointment of Mr. Jitendra Sura 80802 100 — —
as Managing Director

Re-appointment of Mr. Jimish Sura as 80802 100 — —
Executive Director – Finance & CFO

Appointment of Mr. Sunil Vakil as 1247898 100 — —
an Independent Director

Adoption of new set of Memorandum 1247898 100 —- —
of Association of the Company

Adoption of New set of Articles of 1247898 100 — —
Association of the Company

Approval for Alteration of Object Clause 1247898 100 —- —-
of Memorandum of Association of the

Company

26.09.2023 To approve variation/revision in the terms 1414245 99.68 4603 0.32
and conditions of the remuneration of

Mr. Jitendra Sura (DIN : 00480172)

27.09.2022 NIL
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c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot.:  no

d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise.

Nobody. As the exercise of postal ballot could not conducted, as there was no such agenda.

e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

no

f) Procedure for postal ballot:

The aforesaid Postal Ballots were conducted by the Company as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other

applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Rules framed thereunder and General Circulars issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs from time to time.

5. Means of Communication.:

Quarterly Financial Results The results are submitted to the BSE Ltd. the Stock Exchange

and then published in the newspapers having wide coverage,

after the approval of the Board.

Newspapers wherein results normally published Mumbai Mitra (Marathi) & Business Standard (English)

Website where the  results, official news, releases and www.conartengineers.com

presentation made to the investors

Whether website also displays official news releases Yes.

6. General Shareholder information.:

a) Annual General Meeting Monday, 15th September, 2025  at  3.00 p.m. through Video Conferencing

Date, Time and Venue / other audio visual means VC/OAVM).  In compliance with General

Circular 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 09/2024 dated 19th September,

2024 and other relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Companies Affairs

(“MCA Circulars”) and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Rules made thereunder, the 51st Annual

General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is being held through VC /

OAVM without the physical presence of Members at a common venue.

Other relevant details have been provided in the notice of AGM.

b). Corporate Identity Number allotted by L45200MH1973PLC017072

Ministry of Corporate Affairs

b) Financial Year 2024-25

c) Dates of Book Closure Saturday the 6th September, 2025 to 15th September, 2025

(both days inclusive)

d) Listing on Stock Exchange Listing of BSE Limited at Phorozee Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort,

Equity Shares on Stock Exchange Listing Mumbai – 400 001.Listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 has been

Fees paid to the Stock Exchanges, wherein the equity shares of the

Company are listed (i.e. BSE & NSE) within stipulated time.

e) Stock Code 522231

f) Market Price data – high, low during each Please see Annexure A.

month in last financial year.

g) In case of the securities are suspended from Not Applicable

trading the directors’ report shall explain the

reason thereof.

h) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent MUFG Intime India Private Ltd

(Formerly known as M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd)

C-101, 247 Park,  L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083

i) Share Transfer System In terms of Regulation 40 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, as amended

from time to time, securities can be transferred only in dematerialised

form with effect from April 1, 2019. The requests for effecting transfer /

transmission / transposition of securities shall not be processed unless
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the securities are held in dematerialized form. Transfer of shares in

electronic form are effected through the depositories with no involvement

of the Company. Members holding shares in physical form are requested

to consider converting their shareholding to dematerialized form.

j) Distribution of Shareholding Pattern as Please refer Annexure B

on 31-03-2025

k) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity Position as on 3103.2025

l) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or Not Applicable

any Convertible Instruments

m) Registered  Office and Branch Office Regd. Office : 17, Ground Floor, Jay Bharat Society, Nr. Solanki Palace,

3rd Road, Old Khar (w) Mumbai – 400 052

Branch Office : 2nd Floor, Bombay Shopping Centre, R C Dutt Road,

Vadodara – 390 007

n) Address for Correspondence / Investor Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Cordrespondence Conarat Engineers Limited

Branch Office : 2nd Floor, Bombay Shopping Centre, R C Dutt Road,

Vadodara – 390 007

RTA/Share Transfer Agent :

M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Ltd
(Formerly known as M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd)
C-101,247 Park,  L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083

o) Financial Year 1st   April 2024 –31st  March, 2025

First quarter results, second week of August,2025*

Second quarter  results, Second  week of November,2025*

Third quarter results and Second  week of February,2026*

Annual results last week of May,2026** tentative

7. Other Disclosures :

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large :

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the website of the Company

(Weblink- https://www.conartengineerss.com..pdf). There were no materially significant related party transactions

during the year that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

The Register of Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are deemed to be concerned or interested is

placed before the Board and Audit Committee regularly for its approval. Disclosures from directors and senior

management staff have been obtained to the effect that they have not entered into any material, financial and commercial

transactions where they have personal interest that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the notes to the accounts forming part of this Annual Report.

The Company follows the following policy in regard to disclosure of the related party transactions to the Audit Committee:

(i) A statement in the summary form of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business is placed

periodically before the Audit Committee.

(ii)   All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.

(iii)  During the financial year 2022-23, there were no materially significant transactions entered into

between the Company and its Promoter, Directors or the Management, Subsidiary or relatives etc. that might have

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
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b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

c) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

The Company has formulated a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for its designated

employees, in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

2015, as amended from time to time. The Code lays down guidelines, which advises them on procedures to be followed

and disclosures to be made, while dealing with the shares of the Company and cautioning them of the consequences

of violations.

d) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s)
or the board or any other statutory authorities on any matter related to capital market during the last 3 financial
years.

None.

c)   Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel has been
denied access to the audit committee.

There is a Whistle Blower Policy in the Company and that no personnel has been denied access to the Chairman of the

Audit Committee. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use vigil mechanism.

The Whistle Blowing Policy is posted on the website of the Company. (Weblink- https://www.conartengineerss.com..pdf).

e) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of corporate governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details about adoption of non-mandatory requirements are

given in the table  below.

f) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed.

There is no subsidiary Company of the Company and therefore no policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries has

been prepared and uploaded on the website of the Company. However, the Board has approved a policy for related

party transactions which has been uploaded on the website of the Company viz.. ((Weblink-  https://
www.conartengineerss.com..pdf).

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.

The Company is engaged in the construction activity, where no such activities have a place.

h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified
under Regulation 32 (7A).

No funds were raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement during the financial year under

report.

i) A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

The Company has obtained a certificate in this regard from a Company Secretary in practice.

j) Compliance Certificate

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Director – Finance &

CFO  of the Company  have certified to the Board regarding the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

forming part of this Report as  Annexure I.

k) Code of Conduct for the Board and Senior Management Personnel

The Company has formulated comprehensive Code of Conduct (‘Code’) for Board and Senior Management Personnel

of the Company which is available on the website of the Company at www.conartengineerss.com.

The Company has received affirmations from the Board and Senior Management Personnel confirming their compliance

with the said Code for FY 2024-25. An annual declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect

forms part of this Report  as Annexure II.
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l) Familiarisation Programme for Board Members

The Company regularly provides orientation and business overview to its Directors by way of detailed presentations by

the various business & functional heads at Board meetings and through other interactive programmes. Such meetings/

programmes include briefings on the culture, values, business model, domestic business of the Company, the roles and

responsibilities of Directors and senior executives. Besides these, the Directors are regularly updated about Company’s

new projects, R&D initiatives, changes in regulatory environment and strategic direction.

The Board members are also provided relevant documents, reports and internal policies to facilitate familiarisation with

the  Company’s procedures and practices, from time to time.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) and Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, kindly refer to the

Company’s website https://www.conartengineerss.com./Directors-Familiarization-Programme-FY-2024-25.pdf for

details of the familiarization programme for IDs on their roles, rights, responsibilities inthe Company, nature of the

industry in which the Companyoperates, business model of the Company and relatedmatters.

m) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily
required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof.

The Board has accepted and acted on all the mandatory recommendations of its committees during the financial year

under  report.

n) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

The Company does not have any  subsidiary Company and  it has not made any payment to the statutory auditors of the

Company except audit fees. The fees paid  by the Company to its Statutory Auditors are stated in the appended Audited

Financial Statements of the Company.

The total fees for all services paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors of the Company is mentioned at Note No. 36

of Notes to Financial Statements. The Company has not availed any services from the network firm / network entity of

which the Statutory Auditors is a part.

o) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013:

Number of complaints filed during the calendar year 2024-25 : Nil

Number of complaints disposed of during the calendar year : Nil

Number of complaints pending as at end of the calendar year : Nil

p) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies
in which directors are interested by name and amount.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company and it has not  given any loans or advances in the nature of loan

to firms/companies in which directors  are interested in contravention of any provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

q) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and the name and
date of  appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries.

The Company does not have any  subsidiary Company .

r).    Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The raw  materials of  the  Company  are subject  to  domestic price  variations  and in case of imported raw Material  the

same  is  subject to price variation as well as fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. In case of imported raw  materials,

the Company  has  in  place appropriate hedging policy. Further details, if any, are provided in Financial Statements in

terms of applicable SEBI Rules and Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities,.

8. Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report with reasons thereof.

None.

9. Certificate from a Company secretary in practice :

The Company has obtained a certificate from a Company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the Board of the

Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

https://www.conartengineerss.com.
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10. Adoption of Discretionary Requirements.

A. The Board The Company currently has an Executive Chairman and Managing Director

and he has an office maintained by the Company.

B. Shareholders’ Rights At present, the Company does not send the statement of half yearly financial

performance to the household of each shareholder. The Company publishes

the same in the newspapers and also uploads the same on its website.

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report The Company’s financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion.

D. Reporting of internal  auditor The Internal Auditor reports to the Managing Director /Executive Director –

Finance &, as well as to the Audit Committee.

11. The disclosures of the complianrece with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to  (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46.

a) The Company has a process to provide, inter-alia, the information to the Board as specified in Part A of Schedule II of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pertaining to Corporate Governance. The

Board also periodically reviews the compliances by the Company of all applicable laws.

b) The Board of Directors in their meeting regularly discuss and are satisfied that the Company has plans in place for

orderly succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and Senior Management.

c) Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Managerial Personnel. :

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for Board members and senior management personnel of the Company.

The code incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The said code of

conduct is posted on Company’s website www.conartengineerss.com. .

d) In accordance with requirements of Section 149(6) and (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI

LODR Regulations, all the independent directors have given declaration of independence and the same has been

noted in the first board meeting of the current financial year held on 30th May, 2025.

e) The Company complies with the requirement of placing minimum information before the Board of Directors as contained

in Part A of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

f) The Executive Director – Finance & CFO compliance certification under Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements)  Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

g) The Company has an Audit Committee and the Board which regularly discuss  and review about the  Risk Management

and monitor and review risk management plan of the Company , on regular basis, periodically.

h) The Board on an annual basis evaluates the performance of independent Directors. The Independent Directors have

also given declarations that they fulfil the criteria of independence as specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and

that they are independent of the Company’s management.

i) Risk Management Committee:

The Company has not formed a separate Risk Management Committee but  the Audit Committee and the Board which

regularly discuss  and review about the  major Risk and  Risk Management , and  monitor and review risk management

plan of the Company , on regular basis, periodically. The agenda of Audit Committee and the Board Meeting always

includes all the matters listed under Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations such as monitoring and review of risk management plan, as it may deem fit and any other terms as may be

referred to them by the Board of  Directors, from time to time

j) Independent Directors’ Meeting :

The Independent Directors met on 13st March, 2025 to carry out the evaluation for the financial year 2024-25 and inter

alia, discussed the following :

a) Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.

b) Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of Executive and  Non-Executive

Directors

c) Evaluation of quality, content of flow of information between Management and the Board that it is necessary for the

Board to effectively and reasonable perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the aforesaid meeting.
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k) Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Woman at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.:

The details relating thereto  have been provided at  paragraph No. 25 of the Board Report. .

l) Instances of not accepting any recommendation of the Committee by the Board:

There was no such instance, where Board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board,

whether mandatorily required or not, in the relevant financial year.

m) Information on Directors retiring by rotation and seeking appointment / re-appointment :

Directors retiring by rotation and being proposed to be  re-appointed as a Director and as Whole Time Director for
a further period of 3 Years :

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the

Company,   Mr. JitendraSura (DIN: 0480172), who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

o) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

A qualified practising Company Secretary carries out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share

capital with  NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed equity share capital of the Company. The audit report

confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the

total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Annexure – A

The Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2024 is as under

Number of Shares Number of % of total Number of % of
Shareholders Shareholders Shares total Shares

001—500 5502 84.58 742406 11.82

501—1000 533 8.19 416998 6.64

1001—2000 254 3.90 398752 6.35

2001—3000 83 1.28 210657 3.35

3001—4000 42 0.65 154853 2.47

4001-5000 22 0.34 101316 1.61

5001—10000 41 0.63 276330 4.40

10001 And above 28 0.43 3978688 63.36

6505 100 6280000 100

Shareholding pattern as on 31st  March, 2025 is as follows :

Categories of Shareholders No. of Shareholders No. of Shares % of shareholding

Indian promoters 6 27,77,852 44.23

Banks & Financial Institution 0 0

Mutual Funds 0 0

FII/ Foreign Portfolio Investors 0 0

IEPF 1 3,47,398 5.53

NRIS 75 57,515 0.92

Domestic Companies & Other Bodies Corporate 21 20,079 0.32

Resident Individuals and Others 6290 30,77,156 49.00

Total 6393 62,80,000 100.00
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Annexure – A

Market price data of the Company’s shares traded on BSE Limited during the financial year 2024-25

Month — Year High Price Low Price

April, 2024 125.85 96.65

May, 2024 138.70 107.65

June, 2024 172.45 137.75

July, 2024 168.80 126.15

August, 2024 176.05 132.50

September, 2024 191.95 137.50

October, 2024 168.40 146.00

November, 2024 219.90 157.05

December,2024 347.80 207.15

January, 2025 338.45 248.00

February, 2025 316.20 83.20

March, 2025 91.25 70.59

Note : The 1 (one) equity share of Rs.10/- each was sub dividied into 2 (Two) equity shares of Rs.5/- each from 19.02.2025
(record date on BSE)

On 31sft March, 2025, the closing price of the share of the Company on BSE was Rs.70.59 (the equity share of Rs.5/- each on
31.03.2025)
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Annexure V
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED
Mumbai.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate

practices by CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by

the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the

conduct of secretarial audit of the Company, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering

the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company

has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the

Financial Year ended on 31stMarch, 2024 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v. 1. The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) and

which are applicable to the Company:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

(‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

vi. As per Management representation letter there are no specific laws applicable to Company :-

1. Factories Act, 1948;

2. Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951;

3. Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the company either on its payroll

or on contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, bonus, provident fund, ESIC, compensation etc.;
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4. Acts prescribed under prevention and control of pollution;

5. Acts prescribed under Environmental protection;

6. Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax;

7. Land Revenue laws of respective States;

8. Labour Welfare Act to respective States;

9. Trade Marks Act & Copy Right Act ;

10. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009;

11. Acts as prescribed under Shop and Establishment Act of various local authorities.

12. Local Laws as applicable to various offices and plants;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company

Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and

Guidelines Standards mentioned above.

I further report & confirm that the company has maintained Structured Digital Database in compliance with the Regulation 3(5) and

3(6) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31.03.2024.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors

and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of theBoard of Directors that took place during the period under

review were carried out in compliance withthe provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes onagenda were sent at least

seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining furtherinformation and clarifications on the agenda items

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decisions of the Board are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the

company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this Report.

For SANJAY DHOLAKIA & ASSOCIATES
(SANJAY R DHOLAKIA)

Practising Company Secretary
Date : 31-07-2025 Proprietor
Place : Mumbai Membership No. 2655 /CP No. 1798

Peer Reviewed Firm No. 2036/2022
UDIN:F02655G9000899804
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ANNEXURE I TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members,

CONART ENGINEERSLIMITED

Mumbai.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected

in secretarial records. I believe that the practices and processes I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, regulations, norms

and standards and happening of events.

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and norms is the responsibility

of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SANJAY DHOLAKIA & ASSOCIATES
(SANJAY R DHOLAKIA)

Practising Company Secretary
Date : 31-07-2025 Proprietor
Place : Mumbai Membership No. 2655 /CP No. 1798

UDIN:UDIN:F02655G9000899804
Peer Reviewed Firm No. 2036/2022
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015), as amended

To,
The Members of
CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED
17, Ground Floor, Jay Bharat Society Nr. Solanki Palace,
3rd Road, Old Khar, Khar West Mumbai 400052

I have examined the relevant disclosures received from the Directors (as enlisted in Table A) to CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED
having CIN L45200MH1973PLC017072 and having registered office at 17, Ground Floor, Jay Bharat Society Nr. Solanki Palace,

3rd Road, Old Khar, Khar West Mumbai 400052 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), for the purpose of issuing this

certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)

status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and based on the disclosures of the Directors, I hereby certify that

none of the Board of Directors (as enlisted in Table A) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as

Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other

Statutory Authority for the period ended as on 31st March, 2024.

Table A

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company

1. Mr. Jitendra Shankerlal Sura (Managing Director) 00480172 01/12/1978

2. Mr. Jimish Jitendra Sura (Whole Time Director) 03096064 24/09/2010

3. Mr. Nirmal Tarun Parikh (Director) 07507113 10/08/2020

4. Ms.Deepti Sharma (Director) 03630613 07/08/2019

5. Mr. Jignesh Jayantilal Shah (Director) 01790926 24/08/2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance

as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs

of the Company.

For SANJAY DHOLAKIA & ASSOCIATES
(SANJAY R DHOLAKIA)

Practising Company Secretary
Date : 31-07-2025 Proprietor
Place : Mumbai Membership No. 2655 /CP No. 1798

UDIN:F02655G9000899804
Peer Reviewed Firm No. 2036/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of

CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED

I. Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Conart Engineers Limited (“the Company”), which

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive

Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to

financial statement, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter

referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone

Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income,

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together

with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act

and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone

Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone

Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Revenue Recognition under IND AS 115: How our audit assessed the key matter
Revenue from contract with customers:
Fixed price contracts

The Company inter alia engages in Fixed-price contracts, Our audit procedures on revenue recognized from item

wherein, revenue is recognized using the percentage of rate contracts includes:

completion computed asper the input method based on the · Obtained an understanding of the system processes

Company’s estimate of contract costs (Refer Note 2(h) to and controls implemented by company for recording

the standalone financial statements) and computing revenue.

We identified revenue recognition of fixed price contracts · With regards to information technology:

as a Key Audit Matter since: o Assessed the IT environment which the business

a. it pertains to the major activity of the company and the system operates in and tested the system controls

recognition of the revenue depends on third party over which the revenue is recognized;

certification based on the invoices raised, and approved o Tested IT controls over appropriateness of cost and

based on the survey. revenue reports generated by the system;

b. application of this standard is complex and it involves o Tested controls pertaining to allocation of

number of key judgements and estimates mainly in resources and budgeting systems which prevent

identifying performance obligation and recognition of unauthorized recording or changes to costs

revenue based on the stage of completion of the incurred and controls relating to the estimation of

contract on certified invoices. contract costs required to complete the respective

projects

4. Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s

Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the

Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does

not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial

performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to

the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion

on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance

in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purposes of our audit

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from

our examination of those books.

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes

in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of

account

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of

the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014

E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in

terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses

an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements.

G. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section

197(16) of the Act, as amended:In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions

of section 197 of the Act.

H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Financial

Statements.

ii) The company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts

as at 31st March 2025

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of

Rule 11 (e) as provided under a) and b) above, contain any material mis-statement.
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v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section

123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining

its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit

log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares.

Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trial feature being

tempered with.

vii) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under

Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of Audit trial as per the statutory

requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms

of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

Order.

For Govind Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Place : Mumbai Govind Prasad
Date : 27/05/2025 PARTNER

M. No.: 047948

UDIN:25047948BMHYDX4606

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED for the year ended 31st March,
2025.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

1. Property, Plant and Equipment:

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its

Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals;

no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (Including right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both

during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

2. Inventory:

As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. No

material discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification of

stocks by the management as compared to book records.

During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial

institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

3. Loans, Guarantee and Advances given:

The company has not granted loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013:

4. Loans, Guarantee and Advances to Director of Company:

During the year the company has not provided any loans, guarantees, advances and securities to the director of the company

and the company is compliant provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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5. Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India

and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of

Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6. Maintenance of costing records:

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the

Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. Deposit of statutory liabilities:

a. The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, Employee’s state insurance,

income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to

the appropriate authorities.

b. Dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax have been

deposited on time there is no dispute is pending on the part of company, except for the dispute mentioned below

Sr. No Year Type of Tax Authority against which disputed Amount in Dispute (Rs)

1. 2012-2013 to 2014-2015 Service Tax CESTAT 10,78,053

8. Surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments:

The Company does not have any transactions to be recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. Default in repayment of borrowings:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that, the

Company does not have any dues to a financial institution, bank, Government or debenture holders.

10. Funds raised and utilisation:

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the management, the company has not raised any

money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or taken any term loan during the year.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures

during the year under review.

11. Fraud and whistle-blower complaints:

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

No Report under Sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the Auditors in the form ADT-4 as

prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

No Whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.

12. Nidhi Company:

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause (xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

13. Related Party Transactions:

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial

Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. Internal Audit:

The company does have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

Reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

15. Non Cash Transactions:

The company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

16. Registration under RBI act:

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities hence the said clause is not

applicable

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence clause

“C’ and clause “D” are not applicable

17. Cash Losses:

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year

18. Resignation of Statutory Auditors:

There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors occurred during the year.

19. Material uncertainty on meeting liabilities:

On the basis of financial Ratios, Aging and expected dates of Realisation of financial assets and payment of financial

liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements, In our opinion, No material uncertainty exists as on the

date of the audit report and that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when

they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date

20. Transfer to fund specified under Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013

The same is not applicable to the company

21. Qualifications or adverse auditor remark in other group companies

This Clause is not applicable to the company

For Govind Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Place : Mumbai Govind Prasad
Date : 27/05/2025 PARTNER

M. No.: 047948

UDIN:25047948BMHYDX4606

Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CONART ENGINEERS LIMITED (“The Company”) as of

31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit

of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
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obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that

the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For Govind Prasad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Place : Mumbai Govind Prasad
Date : 27/05/2025 PARTNER

M. No.: 047948

DIN:  25047948BMHYDX4606
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025
Rs. in Hundred

Particulars Note As at 31st As at 31st
No March,2025 March,2024

Current Year  Previous year

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 5,22,787.34 4,71,436.33

(b) Other intangible assets 4 132.95 132.95

(c) Investment property 5 61,130.50 61,130.50

(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investment 6 1,40,775.58 90,840.20

(e) Income Tax Assets 7 - 34,929.62

(f) Other non-current assets 8 15,361.75 8,386.52

Total Non-Current Assets 7,40,188.12 6,66,856.12

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 9 9,03,421.34 4,17,757.94

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 10  10,15,348.82 9,18,492.43

(ii) Trade Receivable 11 8,68,397.59 10,31,508.25

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 5,81,919.04 2,57,961.49

(iv) Loans 13 51,184.87 62,955.68

(c) Other Current Assets 14 20,535.31 1,885.59

Total Current Assets 34,40,806.96 26,90,561.38

TOTAL ASSETS 41,80,995.08 33,57,417.49

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Share Capital 15 3,14,000.00 3,14,000.00

(b) Other Equity 16  28,98,476.74 25,88,801.39

32,12,476.74 29,02,801.39
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Long – term Borrowings 17           1,245.33 2,344.33

(b)   Provisions 18                     -        -

(c)   Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19        1,548.23 -

2,793.56 2,344.33
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

i) Trade payables

a) total outstanding Dues from Micro and Small Enterprises 20       63,090.96 53,398.56

b) total outstanding Dues from creditors other than Micro

and Small Enterprises 20     4,44,565.42 1,85,641.65

(b) Other Current Liabilities 21     72,620.45 57,220.98

(c) Provisions 22       3,85,447.95 1,56,010.57

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,65,724.78 4,52,271.76

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41,80,995.08 33,57,417.49
Background 1
Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 31 to 49

For Govind Prasad & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Govind Prasad)
Partner
Membership No. 047948
Firm Registration No. 114360W
Mumbai
Dated : 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Conart Engineers Limited
(Jitendra S Sura) (Jimish J Sura)
Chairman & Managing  Director Executive Director (Finance)
DIN - 00480172 DIN - 03096064
(Narendra Shah)
Company Secretary, ACS 7480
Vadodara
Dated : 27-05-2025
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Rs. in Hundred

Particulars Note No For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024
Current Year Previous Year

I Revenue From Operations 23               56,52,978.92 48,89,426.07

II Other Income 24                   50,928.26 59,432.28

III Total income     57,03,907.17 49,48,858.35

IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 25               22,42,078.65 19,48,169.35

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and 26                (4,30,618.43) 1,77,920.82

work-in-progress

(c) Employee benefit expenses 27                 2,46,080.10 2,75,330.17

(d) Finance costs 28 1,692.62 1,736.43

(e)  Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 53,858.22 60,179.28

(f)   Other expenses 30 32,03,230.07 21,36,854.29

Total expenses    53,16,321.22 46,00,190.35

V Profit before tax      3,87,585.95 3,48,668.00

VI Tax Expenses
(a) Current Tax          94,500.00 98,000.00

(b) Deferred Tax          36,477.85 (49,262.23)

(c) Prior year tax adjustment       (11,220.08) (8,176.05)

Total Tax Expenses    1,19,757.78 40,561.72

VII Profit for the year     2,67,828.17 3,08,106.28

VIII Other comprehensive income
(A) (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently

to the statement of profit and loss :
(a) Net changes in fair values of investments other than

equity shares carries at fair value through OCI         65,406.54 87,925.35

(ii) Income Tax on items that will be reclassified subsequently
to statement of profit and loss :            (16,461.52) (22,129.05)

(B) (i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
the statement of profit and loss :
(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans             (9,485.04) 1,367.55

(b) Changes in fair values of investment in equities

carried at fair value through OCI                      -                   -

(ii) Income Tax on items that will be not be reclassified
subsequently to statement of profit and loss :            2,387.19 (344.18)

Total other comprehensive income       41,847.17 66,819.66

IX Total comprehensive income for the year       3,09,675.34 3,74,925.94

X Earnings per equity share: Basic & Diluted ‘                4.26 9.81

(of Rs.5/-each) (of Rs.10/-each)

Weighted average number of equity shares (in actuals)         62,80,000        31,40,000

(face value of Rs. 5/- each) (face value of Rs. 10/- each in P.Y.)

Background 1
Significant Accounting Policies 2

XI See accompanying notes to the financial statements 31 to 49

For Govind Prasad & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Govind Prasad)
Partner
Membership No. 047948
Firm Registration No. 114360W
Mumbai
Dated : 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Conart Engineers Limited
(Jitendra S Sura) (Jimish J Sura)
Chairman & Managing  Director Executive Director (Finance)
DIN - 00480172 DIN - 03096064
(Narendra Shah)
Company Secretary, ACS 7480
Vadodara
Dated : 27-05-2025
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Rs. in Hundred

                                                                                                     As at 31st March, 2025            As at 31st March, 2024

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

A Cash Flow From Operating  Activities

Profit/(loss) for the year 3,87,585.95 3,48,668.00

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 53,858.22 60,179.28

Finance cost 1,692.62 1,736.43

Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Assets (9,414.15) (2,759.13)

Provision written back - (11,611.40)

Bad Debts Recovered (26,798.20) -

Share of profit in Firm 64.62 (197.18)

Provision for Diminution in value of Investment - (9.03)

(Profit)/Loss on sale of investment (6,449.87) (33,446.42)

Dividend Received (17.50) (15.00)

Interest Received (6,130.79) 6,804.95 (4,150.33) 9,727.22

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,94,390.90 3,58,395.22

Adjustments:
Inventories (4,85,663.40) 2,51,502.36

Trade receivables 1,89,908.87 (4,13,775.16)

Other receivables (23,339.18) (35,404.58)

Trade payables 2,68,616.17 (22,767.67)

Other payables 2,35,352.30 1,84,874.76 32,775.08 (1,87,669.97)

Cash Generated From Operations 5,79,265.66 1,70,725.25

Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds) (87,869.70) (79,324.52)

Net Cash From Operating Activities 4,91,395.96 91,400.73

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of  Fixed Assets (1,06,984.81) (29,032.05)

Interest Received 6,130.79 4,150.33

Dividend Recd 17.50 15.00

Sale of Fixed Assets 11,189.73 30,509.50

Proceeds from Partnership Firm (50,000.00) (90,000.00)

Sale of Investment 75,000.00 3,26,424.28

Purchase of Investment (1,00,000.00) (1,64,646.79) (3,49,999.99) (1,07,932.93)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,64,646.79) (1,07,932.93)

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borowings (1,099.00) (1,267.62)

Finance Cost (1,692.62) (2,791.62) (1,736.43) (3,004.05)

Total Of A+B+C 3,23,957.55 (19,536.25)

Cash and Cash Equivalents Opening 2,57,961.49 2,77,497.73

Cash and Cash Equivalents Closing 5,81,919.04 (3,23,957.55) 2,57,961.49 19,536.24

For Govind Prasad & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Govind Prasad)
Partner

Membership No. 047948

Firm Registration No. 114360W

Mumbai

Dated : 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Conart Engineers Limited
(Jitendra S Sura) (Jimish J Sura)
Chairman & Managing  Director Executive Director (Finance)

DIN - 00480172 DIN - 03096064

(Narendra Shah)
Company Secretary, ACS 7480

Vadodara

Dated : 27-05-2025
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STATEMENT OF CHAGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Amount in Hundred

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

I. Current reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2024 Changes in equity share Balance as at
capital during the period March 31, 2025

3,14,000 - 3,14,000

(Rs. in Hundreds)

II. Previous reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2023 Changes in equity share Balance as at
capital during the period March 31, 2024

3,14,000 - 3,14,000

B. OTHER EQUITY

 (Rs. in Hundreds)

                                                                                                                         Reserves and Surplus

Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reserve Earnings

I. Current reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2024 1,97,736.00 55,188.95 23,35,876.44 25,88,801.39

Profit for the year                                        -                                 - 2,67,828.17 2,67,828.17

Other Comprehensive Income                                        -                                 - 41,847.17 41,847.17

Total Comprehensive Income                                        -                                 - 3,09,675.34 28,98,476.74

Interim Dividend paid                                        -                                 -                               -                      -

Dividend Distribution Tax                                        -                                 -                               -                      -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,97,736.00 55,188.95 26,45,551.79 28,98,476.74

II. Previous reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2023 1,97,736.00 55,188.95 19,60,950.50 22,13,875.45

Profit for the year                                        -                                 - 3,08,106.28 3,08,106.28

Other Comprehensive Income                                        -                                 - 66,819.66 66,819.66

Total Comprehensive Income                        1,97,736.00 55,188.95 3,74,925.94 25,88,801.39

Interim Dividend paid                                        -                                 - - -

Dividend Distribution Tax                                        -                                 - - -

Balance as at March 31,2024 1,97,736.00 55,188.95 23,35,876.44 25,88,801.39

For Govind Prasad & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Govind Prasad)
Partner

Membership No. 047948

Firm Registration No. 114360W

Mumbai

Dated : 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Conart Engineers Limited
(Jitendra S Sura) (Jimish J Sura)
Chairman & Managing  Director Executive Director (Finance)

DIN - 00480172 DIN - 03096064

(Narendra Shah)
Company Secretary, ACS 7480

Vadodara

Dated : 27-05-2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

NOTE - “1” :

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Conart Engineers Limited is a Public Limited company incorporated in India having CIN L45200MH1973PLC017072. The

registered address of its Corporate Office is at 17, Ground Floor, Jay Bharat Society, Nr. Solanki Palace, 3rd Road Old Khar, Khar

West, Mumbai – 400 052 and Branch Office is 2nd Bombay Shopping Centre, R. C. Dutt Road, Vadodara – 390 007. The company

is engaged providing full range of General Contracting and Project Management Services for Industrial, Commercial, and Residential

Construction projects. The Company provides service to sectors like Heavy Machinery, Pharmaceuticals, Chemicals, Textiles,

and Educational. Our experience has been Four decades long. Majority of our projects are awarded from Private Sectors clients

and are based on At-Risk Contracting. 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Director and authorized for issue on

27th May,2025.

NOTE - “2” :

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to

as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as amended from time to time.

b. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which

are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the consideration given in exchange for goods and/or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date.

c. Current and non-current classification

I. Assets

The entity classifies an asset as current when:

(a) it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

(b) it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

II. Liabilities

The entity classifies a liability as current when:

(a) it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

(b) it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in it settlement by the issue of equity

instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle considered as 12 months by the management

d. Use of estimates

The presentation of Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and assumption

used in the accompanying Financial Statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and

circumstances as of the date of the financial statement. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in

preparing the accompanying Financial statements.
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e. Property plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of purchase price, including import duties and taxes (other

than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), after deducting trade discounts and rebates,

and including any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable

of operating in the manner intended by management.

After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight-Line Method at the manner prescribed under schedule II of the companies Act,

2013. The useful life of the asset is considered as prescribed under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment are reviewed at each

financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or loss arising from derecognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount.

f. Investment property

The investment properties held by the company are valued at cost at which comprises its purchase price and any directly

attributable expenditure. There is no existence and amounts of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the

remittance of income and proceeds of disposal nor are there any contractual obligations.

All the investment properties has generated income through rental income during the year under consideration

The company is not provided any depreciation on the investment properties as the said properties are held for sale, as the

intention of the company is to recover the principal amount through sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

g. Intangible assets

a) Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are

carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

b) Amortization:

Intangible Assets are amortized on a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization

expense on intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated useful life of software is

considered as per schedule II of the companies Act, 2013. The amortization period and the amortization method for an

intangible asset is reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates,

such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

c) De-recognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an intangible asset is measured as

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in

the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Property, Plant and Equipment or

intangible assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine

the extent of impairment.

Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss to the extent the carrying amounts of assets exceeds

their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use.

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from

its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arms-length transaction between knowledgeable,

willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been change in estimate of recoverable

amount.
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i. Financial Instruments:

i) Financial Assets

a. Initial Recognition and measurement

The entity recognizes a financial asset in its balance sheet only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. All financial assets except trade receivables are measured at fair value. Transaction

cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through

profit and loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are be recognised and using trade date accounting

b. Subsequent Measurement

i) Financial Instruments measured at Amortised Cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model where objective is to hold the

asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise on

specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within the business model where objective is achieved by

both contractual cash flows and selling of financial assets and contractual terms of financial assets give rise on

specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

iii) Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL

c. Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets are

impaired.

In accordance with IND AS 109, the company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss (ECL)’ model, for evaluating impairment

of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through loss allowance at an amount equal to:

a. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the

financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

b. Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the

life of financial instruments)

For trade receivables the company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognized from initial recognition of trade receivables.

The company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At

every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are

analyzed

For other assets, the company uses 12-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant

increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

ii) Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition and Measurement

The entity recognizes a financial liability in its balance sheet only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit and loss, are

adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost using effective interest method

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts

approximates fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.
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iii) De-recognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset

expires or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition as per IND AS 109.

Financial liability (or part of financial liability) is derecognized from the company’s balance sheet when obligation

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the company has legally enforceable right to set-off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on

a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

j. Income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of profit

and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or in equity. In which case,

the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

i) Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the income tax

authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at balance sheet date.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in financial

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability

is settled or the assets realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period

k. Inventories

Construction materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, on the basis of weighted average method after

providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase,

duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the

inventory to their present location and condition.

Work-in-progress represents cost incurred directly in respect of construction activity and indirect construction cost to the

extent to which the expenditure is related to the construction or incidental thereto is valued at lower of cost or net realizable

value

Amount of work in progress certified / billed in the subsequent year is pro-rated for the year under review, based on number

of days involved.

Stocks of stores and scaffolding have been valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower having regard to the life

of such material used.

Stock of raw materials is valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

Finished goods are valued at cost or market value, whichever is lower.

l. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with banks, short-term deposits and short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value and having original maturity of three months or less.

m. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its

liabilities.

n. Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision where there is present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event that

probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but

probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of

which the likelihood of outflow of resource is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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o. Contract receipts / revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows to the Company in the

ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Contract revenue:

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive

payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. When the outcome

of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in

proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work

performed. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to

the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Full provision is made for any loss in the year in which

it is first foreseen. Cost incurred towards future contract activity is classified as project work in progress.

Revenue from operations is measured at fair value of the consideration receivable or received, taking into account contractually

defined terms of payment and excluding taxes collected on behalf of the government.

In respect of contracts executed, the company accounts for income to the extend of work completed, on the basis of invoices

certified. Uncertified contract receipts are determined on technical estimates.

Material supplied by the clients in accordance with the terms of contract is not taken into account as contract receipts.

Prices, escalations and de-escalations are accounted as and when certified.

Sale of goods & Services:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company transfers all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the

buyer, while the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed.

Interest and dividend:

Interest income is recognized using effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

p. Employee benefit expenses

Short Term Employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange of the services rendered by

employees are recognized as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contributions to

separate entities. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund, State Insurance, and

Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the

period in which the employee renders the related service.

The company also provides retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity on the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Gratuity liability is covered by a Group Gratuity policy with life insurance Corporation of India.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of

resignation/superannuation.

The company also provides retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity on the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Gratuity liability is covered by a Group Gratuity policy with life insurance Corporation of India.

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Post-Employment are charged to other Comprehensive Income.
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Property, Plant and Equipment  .........     “3”
Rs. in Hundred

Description Freehold Buildings Plant and Computer Vehicles Office Furniture Total
Land equipment equipment equipment and

fixtures

Cost as at April 1,2024 12,406.41 8,293.16 810,593.10 8,749.33 145,378.80 18,446.01 19,338.47 1,023,205.28

Additions -              - 83,669.68          645.99       20,926.09        1,743.06                 -    1,06,984.81

Disposals                  - - 4,175.19                -       22,743.03                 -                 -       26,918.22

Cost as at March 31 ,2025     12,406.41      8,293.16     8,90,087.59     9,395.32  1,43,561.86    20,189.07    19,338.47  11,03,271.87

Accumulated depreciation

as at April 1, 2025                 - 1,998.69 4,19,456.40 7,084.87 92,764.71 13,183.28 17,281.00 5,51,768.95

Depreciation for the period -      131.03 38,831.98 716.95 12,895.63 1,030.24 252.39       53,858.22

Disposals                  - 3,687.83                -      21,454.81 - - - 25,142.64

Accumulated depreciation
as at March 31, 2025                 -      2,129.72     4,54,600.55     7,801.82     84,205.53    14,213.52    17,533.39    5,80,484.53

Net carrying amount
as at March 31,2025     12,406.41      6,163.44     4,35,487.04     1,593.50     59,356.33      5,975.55      1,805.08    5,22,787.34

Cost as at April 1,2023       12,406.41 34,918.16 8,24,036.03 7,823.21 1,45,378.80 16,559.83 19,289.47 10,60,411.91
Additions                  -              - 26,170.75          926.12                  -        1,886.18           49.00       29,032.05
Disposals                  -  26,625.00 39,613.68                -                  -                 -                 -       66,238.68

Cost as at March,31 ,2024     12,406.41      8,293.16     8,10,593.10     8,749.33  1,45,378.80    18,446.01    19,338.47  10,23,205.28

Accumulated depreciation

as at April 1, 2023                 -       6,695.22 4,09,032.03 6,462.09 79,885.23 11,041.17     17,032.84 5,30,148.58
Depreciation for the period                  -    483.71 43,732.44 622.78       12,879.48        2,142.11         248.16       60,108.68
Disposals                  -  5,180.24 33,308.07                -                  -                 -                 -       38,488.31

Accumulated depreciation
as at March 31, 2024                 -      1,998.69     4,19,456.40     7,084.87     92,764.71    13,183.28    17,281.00    5,51,768.95

Net carrying amount
as at March 31, 2024     12,406.41      6,294.47     3,91,136.70     1,664.46     52,614.09      5,262.73      2,057.47    4,71,436.33

Other Intangible assets  .........     “4”

Description Computer Software

Cost as at April 1,2024 2,659.00

Additions 0

Disposals 0

Cost as at March 31 ,2025 2,659.00

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2025        2,526.05

Depreciation for the period -

Disposals -

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025        2,526.05

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025           132.95

Cost as at April 1,2023 2,659.00

Additions                  -

Disposals                  -

Cost as at March,31 ,2024 2,659.00

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023        2,455.45

Depreciation for the period      70.60

Disposals                  -

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024        2,526.05

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024           132.95
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Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Investment Property    .........     “5”
Flats Held for Resale 61,130.50 61,130.50

The Company is a Partner in Clue Realestate Marketing Enterprises LLP. 61,130.50 61,130.50
On Ceasation of Business of the LLP, the stock of Flats lying in the LLP

has been sold to the Partners in their Profit sharing ratio at fair value.

Investments    .........     “6”

(a) Investment in Equity Instruments
UNQUOTED
Investment carried at cost

In Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. 100.00 100.00

100.00 100.00
QUOTED
In Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of

Mindvision Capital (Kailash Ficom Ltd.) 135.00 135.00

Bubna Major Bio-tech Ltd. 96.00 96.00

Nutech Organic Ltd. 25.00 25.00

Pan Asia Industries Ltd. 18.00 18.00

Mcnally Sayaji Engineers Ltd. 1,400.00 1,400.00

1,674.00 1,674.00
Less: Provision for Difference in fair Value (1,165.52) (1,165.52)

508.48           508.48

608.48           608.48

(b) INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP FIRM.
M/s Clue Realestate Marketing Enterprises  40% 231.72             34.54

( Partners Details ) 231.72             34.54
1) M/s Conart Engineers Ltd - 40.00 %

2) Mr Virendra O Parekh   - 10.00 %

3) Mrs Neelam V Parekh - 10.00 %

4) Mr Ankit U Patel - 25.00 %

5) M/s Samarth Land Concepts pvt ltd- 15.00 %

Total Capital of All Partners of Clue Realestate Marketing
Enterprises LLP is Rs.3,00,000.00
2 M/s Edifine Lifespace LLP (M/s Conart Engineers Ltd -   20% Share)     1,40,000.00 90,000.00

1,40,167.10 90,231.72
1,40,775.58 90,840.20

Deferred Tax Assets (net)     .........     “7”
Deferred Tax Assets (net)                                 -             34,929.62

Details of Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Assets

Other Temporary Disallowance                                 -             52,805.12

Total -             52,805.12

Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation                                 -             17,875.50

Total  -             17,875.50

Net Deferred Tax Assets                                 -             34,929.62

Other Non-Current Assets     .........     “8”
Sundry Deposits 15,361.75               7,171.05

Others - 1,215.47

15,361.75               8,386.52
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Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2026

Rupees Rupees

Inventories    .........     “9”
(As per inventory taken, valued and certified by the Director)

Raw Materials: Construction Materials 64,657.31             15,569.79

Work-in-progress  8,16,991.08          3,86,372.65

Finished Stock (Including Stock of Completed Flats)        - -

Stores, spares, shuttering and scaffoldings     21,772.95             15,815.50

9,03,421.34          4,17,757.94
Investments    .........      “10”
Investment carried at fair value through OCI

No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount

(a) Investment in Mutual Funds

(i) TATA BALANCED ADVANTAGE FUND 6,24,797       1,22,400.21 6,24,797 1,16,869.51

(iii) ICICI Prudential AMP / Asset Allocator Fund - G 2,87,948       3,27,154.59 2,87,948 2,98,764.10

(v) ICICI Prudential IMPG / Regular Saving Fund - G 2,94,264       2,14,232.21 2,94,264 1,96,897.08

(vi) Nippon India Ultra Short Duration Fund - G 8,886       3,51,561.82 5,438 3,05,961.74

The Amount shown above are at fair Value 10,15,348.82 9,18,492.43

Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Trade receivable    .........     “11”
Unsecured, Considered Good

Debts Exceeding Six Months 2,42,491 2,81,883

2,42,491 2,81,883

Others 6,25,907 7,49,625

6,25,907 7,49,625

As at 31st, March,2025

Trade Receivable ageing schedule Less than 6 mth - 1 - 2 2 - 3 More than Total
6 mths 1 Year  Years  Years  3 Years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

considered good 6,25,907.03 1,81,938.98 21,398.85 27,055.45 12,097.28 8,68,397.59

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables -

considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv) Dndisputed Trade Receivables -

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

As at 31st, March,2024

Trade Receivable ageing schedule Less than 6 mth - 1 - 2 2 - 3 More than Total
6 mths 1 Year  Years  Years  3 Years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

considered good 749,625 236,157.18 - 33,818.63 11,907.56 1,031,508.25

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables -

considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv) Dndisputed Trade Receivables -

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Cash and cash equivalents     .........     “12”
A) Cash and Cash Equivelant

Balance with Scheduled Banks

In Current Accounts 4,84,540.52 1,69,396.32

In Fixed Deposit 6,250.00 3,500.00

Cash on Hand 1,200.91 674.72

 4,91,991.43 1,73,571.04

B) Other Balances with Banks

in Margin money account 88,762.09 83,224.93

in unpaid dividend account 1,165.52 1,165.52

89,927.61 84,390.45

GRAND TOTAL  5,81,919.04 2,57,961.49

Loans     .........     “13”
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for

Value to Be Received 44,069.69 62,955.68

Advance for Flat 6,000.00

Loan to Staff 1,115.18

51,184.87 62,955.68

Other current assets    .........     “14”
Prepaid Exp 4,376.34 1,885.58

Balance in GST 16,158.97

20,535.31 1,885.58

Equity share capital     ........     “15”
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
40,00,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10.00 each 4,00,000.00 4,00,000.00

P.Y. 40,00,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10.00 each

4,00,000.00 4,00,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL :
62,80,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.5.00 each 3,14,000.00 3,14,000.00

P.Y. 31,40,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10.00 each

3,14,000.00 3,14,000.00
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AS AT AS AT

31st March,2025          31st March,2024

No. Amount No. Amount

a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares

and Preferential shares outstanding at the

beginning and at the end of the year :

Equity Shares of  Rs.5/- each fully Paid-up

Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 62,80,000 3,14,000.00 31,40,000 3,14,000.00

Changes during the year - - - -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 62,80,000 3,14,000.00 31,40,000 3,14,000.00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each

class of shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred

to as equity shares having a par value of  Rs.5/- per

share (Previously it is Rs.10/- per share) . Each

holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity

share holders will be entitled to receive remaining

assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

c) The Detail of Shareholders holding more than

5% shares:

AS AT AS AT

31st March,2025          31st March,2024

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

1) Jitendra S Sura HUF 3,96,460 6.313 1,98,230 6.313

2) Jimish J Sura 13,25,214 21.102 6,62,107 21.102

3) Jitendra S Sura 4,07,842 6.49 2,05,921 6.558

4) Nayna J Sura 4,81,136 7.66 2,48,568 7.916

5) Investor Education and Protection Fund 3,49,798 5.570 1,74,899 5.570

d) Details of promoters shareholding

Promoter Name  No of Shares  % of holding  % Change

during the year

As at 31st March 2025

1) Jitendra S Sura HUF         3,96,460              6.313  No Change

2) Jimish J Sura           13,24,214            21.086  No Change

3) Jitendra S Sura           4,07,842              6.49

4) Nayna J Sura          4,81,136              7.66

5) Pooja Jimish Sura              1,00,000              1.592  No Change

6) Sukeshi Kamlesh Gandhi              67,200              1.070  No Change

As at 31st March 2024

1) Jitendra S Sura HUF           1,98,230              6.313  No Change

2) Jimish J Sura           6,62,107            21.086  No Change

3) Jitendra S Sura           2,05,921              6.558  No Change

4) Nayna J Sura           2,48,568              7.916  No Change

5) Pooja Jimish Sura              50,000              1.592  No Change

6) Sukeshi Kamlesh Gandhi              33,600              1.070  No Change
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AS AT AS AT
31st March,2025          31st March,2024

Amount Amount

Other Equity      ........     “16”
Share Premium
Per last Balance Sheet 1,97,736.00 1,97,736.00

Changes during the year - -

Balance at the Close of the Year 1,97,736.00 1,97,736.00

GENERAL RESERVE
Per last Balance Sheet 55,188.95 55,188.95

Changes during the year - -

Balance at the Close of the Year 55,188.95 55,188.95

Retained Earnings
As per Last Balance Sheet 23,35,876.44 19,60,950.50

Add : Profit for the Year 3,09,675.34 26,45,551.79 3,74,925.94 23,35,876.44

Balance at the end of the Year 28,98,476.74 25,88,801.39

Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Financial Liabilites  ..........................     “17”
(i) Long – term Borrowings 1,245.33               2,344.33

1,245.33 2,344.33
From Banks *
* Against Hypothecation of Car , Vehicles Loan Repayment of Term Loans are on EMI Basis

Provisions      .........     “18”

Provision for employee benefits       0.00      0.00

0.00        0.00

Deferred tax liabilities (net)    .........     “19”

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)       (34,929.62)       14,332.61

DETAILS OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation 17,811.54 -

Total 17,811.54 -

Deferred Tax Assets

Other Temporary Disallowances 16,263.31 -

Total 16,263.31 -

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,548.23 -

Trade payables      .........     “20”
Total dues of Micro ,Small and Medium Enterprises
Trade Payable for Material & Labour 63,090.96             53,398.56

Others - -

63,090.96           53,398.56
Total dues of creditors other than Micro ,Small and Medium Enterprises
Trade Payable for Material & Labour 4,44,565.42 1,84,231.99

Others - 1,409.66

4,44,565.42        1,85,641.65
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As at 31st March 2025

Trade Payable ageing Schedule Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 Year Years Years 3 Years

(i) MSME 35,315.40       27,215.77                          -             62,531.17

(ii) Others   4,43,301.82        1,263.60              -                         - 4,44,565.42

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 559.79 559.79

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

As at 31st March 2024

Trade Payable ageing Schedule Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 Year Years Years 3 Years

(i) MSME 50,828.13        2,570.64              -                         -             53,398.77

(ii) Others    1,42,859.89       19,538.44     8,148.43 14,534.85 1,85,081.66

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 559.79 559.79

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Other Current Liabilities      .........     “21”
Current Maturity of Long-term debts # 981.47 1,388.05

Statutory Liabilities 12,361.66               7,990.87

Due to Staff  48,341.56             24,407.43

Others 10,936               2,248.23

Advance from Customer - 21,186.40

72,620.35           57,220.98

# Against Hypothecation of Car, Vehicles Loan Repayment of Term Loans are on EMI Basic.

Provisions      .........     “22”
(d)   Short – Term Provisions

Other Provisions 3,63,177.29 1,26,109.66

Provision for Income Tax 1,08,574.32 1,20,473.24

Less: Advance Tax including TDS (86,303.66) (90,572.33)

3,85,447.95        1,56,010.57

Income From Operations     .........     “23”
Sales and Services 56,52,978.92       48,89,426.07

TOTAL 56,52,978.92    48,89,426.07

Other Income     .........     “24”
Interest Received 6,130.79             4,150.33

Dividend from Investment                 17.50                 15.00

Profit on sales  of investment             6,449.87           33,446.42

Shares of Profit in Partnership Firms                      -               197.18

Provision for Doubtful Debts Reversed                      -                      -

Bad Debts Recovered           26,798.20                      -

Rent received 2,021.31             3,363.89

Profit on Sale of Assets             9,414.15             6,523.67

Other Income 96.44           11,726.76

TOTAL 50,928.26         59,432.28
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Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Cost of Materials Consumed     .........     “25”
Material Purchased 22,91,166.17       18,71,203.31

Add.Opening Stock of Raw Materials           15,569.79           92,535.83

Less :Closing Stock of Raw Materials         (64,657.31)          (15,569.79)

MATERIAL CONSUMED 22,42,078.65    19,48,169.35

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods Work-in-progress     .........     “26”
Closing Stock  of  Work-in-Progress 8,16,991.08         3,86,372.65

Closing Stock of  Finished Goods                      - -

Less : Opening Stock of Work-in-Progress         3,86,372.65         5,60,336.11

Less : Opening Stock of Finished Goods            - 3,957.36

TOTAL (4,30,618.43)      1,77,920.82

Employee Benefits Expense     .........     “27”
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,16,875.63         2,29,906.78

Contribution to P.F and other funds         5,445.57           21,668.99

Gratuity 1,198.85             1,002.67

Staff Welfare Expenses           22,560.05           22,751.73

TOTAL 2,46,080.10      2,75,330.17

Finance Costs     .........     “28”
Interest on Fixed Loans               271.74 -

Bank Commission Charges        18.79                 22.68

Interest Paid               27.50               550.43

Bank Guarantee Commission            1,374.59             1,163.32

TOTAL 1,692.62           1,736.43

Depreciation and Amortization Exp     .........     “29”
I) Tangible Assets 53,858.22         60,108.68

ii) Intangible Assets - 70.60

53,858.22         60,179.28
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Rs. in Hundred

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Rupees Rupees

Other Expenses     .........     “30”
1) MANUFACTURING AND OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES

Stores, Spares, Shuttering Consumed 5,622.75           1,201.56

Contract Labour Payments 5,78,772.41      5,95,137.35

Payment to sub Contractor with Material 23,82,437.35    12,84,674.49

Professional and Consulting Fees - Employee 11,609.53           3,830.00

Coolie, Cartage, Transportation 2,851.19           1,638.23

Equipment Contract Payment -           1,311.40

Machinery Hire Charges 21,296.28         35,135.93

Repairs & Maintenance to Machinery 10,191.90           9,549.11

Site Expenses 33,209.40         45,304.31

Contractual Expenses 2,504.73              801.90

Gas and Fuel 4,427.71         13,207.09

30,52,923.24    19,91,791.37

2) ADMINISTRATION AND SELLING EXP
Rent, Rates and Taxes 6,288.61           5,477.73

Traveling and Conveyance 8,202.18           6,413.83

Compensation for use of Premises 19,985.80         25,147.00

Insurance Premium 1,765.83           3,625.72

36,242.42         40,664.29

Payment to Auditors for:

Audit Fees 1,000.00 1,000.00

Audit Fees - Income Tax Matters 150.00 150.00

Tax Audit 850.00 850.00

Out of Pocket Expenses 285.92              191.03

Sub-Total 2,285.92           2,191.03

Repairs to Other Assets 5,614.47           8,572.72

Miscellaneous Expenses 9,745.32           5,959.00

Loss on Assets Sold & Discarded -           3,764.54

Bad Debts 3,039.02         38,930.34

Professional and Consulting Fees - Others 17,039.79         10,931.12

Loss on Sales of Flats -                      -

Directors Remuneration 42,391.92

Interest on GST,Vat,Service Tax, TDS & TCS etc 33.77              902.76

Postage, Telephone and Telex 1,224.48           1,074.67

Share of loss from partnership firm 64.62

Printing and Stationery 1,469.70           1,614.30

Electricity Charges 1,000.06           1,247.93

Business Promotion Exp 9,267.86           7,210.41

Motor Vehicle Expenses 20,887.49         21,999.82

1,11,778.49      1,02,207.61

TOTAL 32,03,230.07    21,36,854.29

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES      …....... “ 31”

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Guarantee given to bank 74,63,900.00 79,16,615.00

Service tax liabilities* 10,78,053 10,78,053

*Service Tax Liabilities of Rs.10,78,053.00 for the F.Y.2012-13,2013-14 & 2014-15 are pending before the appellate authority.
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Capital Commitment      …....... “32”
Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is Nil in current as well as previous

year

Title deeds of immovable property …....... “33”
All the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the company.

Relationship with Struck off Companies …....... “34”
The Company has not dealt with any company whose balance if outstanding as on 31/03/2025, and whose name is struck of from

registrar of Companies u/s 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or sec 560 of the Companies Act 1956.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) …....... “35”

The company is not covered u/s 135 of the companies Act 2013 under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Payments to Statutory auditor      …....... “36”
Audit fees 100,000 100,000

Audit Fees – Income Tax Matters 15,000    15,000

Tax audit fees 85,000    85,000

Out of Pocket Expenses 28,592 19,103

Total 2,28,592 219,103

Managerial Remuneration         …....... “37”
Salary and Commission 57,00,000 54,60,000

Contribution to Superannuation Fund 7,93,800 7,93,800

Perquisites and Benefit 5,66,067 5,48,628

Total 70,59,867 68,02,428

Expenditure in Foreign Currency     …....... “38”
NIL Nil

Earning in foreign Currency   …....... “39”
: NIL           NIL

Segment reporting …....... “40”
The management of the company has determined only one segment i.e. construction, thus segment wise reporting is not applicable.

Related party transactions …....... “41”

A. List of Related Parties during the year

Sr. No. Name of Related Party Nature of relationship

1. Jitendra Shankerlal Sura Director

2. Mr. Jignesh Shah Director

3. Jitendra Shankerlal Sura HUF HUF of director

4. Prachi N Desai Relative of the director

5. Nayana Sura Relative of the director

6. Shankerlal Sura Relative of the director

7. Pooja Sura Relative of the director

8. Nirmit Desai Relative of the director

9. Sukeshi Kamlesh Gandhi Relative of the director

10. Procost Systems LLP Firm where director has interest

11. Jimish Sura Director

12. Aahar Sura Relative of the director

13. Hiya Sura Relative of the director

14. Sura Infrastructure and Management Pvt. Ltd. Company with common director

15. Standard Belex India Pvt Ltd Firm where director has interest
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B. Name of Related Parties & Nature of Transaction Value of Transaction

Name of  Person Nature of Transaction Volume of Transaction Volume of Transaction

As on 31/03/25 As on 31/03/24

(Rupees) (Rupees)

Jitendra S Sura Rent 60,000 54,000

Remuneration 27,73,624 27,77,647

Advance for Property 6,00,000 -

Jimish J Sura   Rent 0 0

Remuneration 42,86,243 40,24,776

Jitendra S Sura  HUF   Rent 2,34,000 2,34,000

Prachi N Desai   Rent 4,32,000 4,32,000

Standard Belex India Pvt Ltd Materials Purchase 36,16,347 24,95,013

Clue Real Estate Investment in 1,20,000 1,20,000

Marketing Enterprises LLP Partnership Firm

Loan to Partnership Firm (1,03,290) (96,828)

Closing Balance 16,710 23,172

Share of Profit / Loss (6,462.38) 19,718

Edifine Lifespace LLP Investment in Partnership Firm 1,40,00,000 90,00,000

Jignesh Shah Purchase of Materials 35,86,459 -

*The above entities include related party(ies) where the relationship existed even for the part of the year.

No Loan or Advance in the Nature of Loans are granted to promoters / Directors / KMPs and the related parties ( as defined under

Companies Act,2013) either severally or jointly with any other person.

EARNING PER SHARE      …....... “42”
Basic earning per share has been calculated by dividend profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the

basic earning per share and diluted earning per share are the same. Earning per share has been calculated as under:

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Profit after taxation 2,67,828.17 3,08,106.28

Weighted average no. of shares  (In actuals) 31,40,000 31,40,000

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) 8.53 9.81
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Analytical Ratios

Rs. In Hundred

Sr. Particulars Formula For the year ended For the year ended
no. 31st Mar 2025 31st Mar 2024

Values Ratio Values Ratio

1 Current Ratio Current Assets 34,40,806.96 3.56 26,90,561.38 5.95

Current liabilities 9,65,724.78 4,52,271.76

Current assets and current liabilities include total current assets and current liabilities as appearing in the balance sheet.

2 Debt to equity ratio Total Debt 1,245.33  0.00 2,344.33 0.00

Total Equity 32,12,476.74 29,02,801.39

Total debt includes long-term borrowings whereas total equity includes shareholders' funds

3 Debt service coverage ratio                                       Not applicable as there is no loan repayment commitment.

4 Return on equity Net Income 2,67,828.17 0.09 3,08,106.28 0.11

Average 30,57,639.06 27,15,338.42

Shareholder’s Equity

Net income is profit after tax whereas shareholders' equity is shareholders' fund.

5 Inventory turnover ratio COGS 51,10,463.55 8.49 43,93,211.72 9.24

Average inventory 6,01,681.87 4,75,333.06

COGS includes purchase cost, changes in inventory and other direct expenses. Average inventory is simple average of

opening and closing inventory

6 Trade receivables turnover Net credit sales 56,52,978.92 5.95 48,89,426.07 5.93

ratio Average debtors 9,49,952.92 8,24,620.67

Net credit sales is total credit sales during the year. Average debtors is the simple average of opening and closing trade

receivables

7 Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchase 22,91,166.17 6.14 18,71,203.31 7.30

Average creditors 3,73,348.30 2,56,229.75

Net credit purchase is total credit purchases during the year. Average creditors are the simple average of opening and closing

trade payables

8 Net capital turnover ratio Net annual sales 56,52,978.92 2.40 48,89,426.07 2.34

Average working capital 23,56,685.90 20,87,839.49

Net credit sales is total credit sales during the year. Average working capital is the simple average of opening and closing

working capital

9 Net profit ratio Profit after tax 2,67,828.17 0.05 3,08,106.28 0.06

Total sales 56,52,978.92 48,89,426.07

Profit after tax is total profit after tax and total sales is revenue from operations

10 Return on capital employed Earnings before interest  3,89,278.57 0.12 3,50,404,.43 0.12

and taxes

Capital employed 32,14,024.97 28,67,871.77

Earnings before interest and taxes. Capital employed includes shareholders' fund, long term and short-term borrowings

11 Return on investment Profit after tax 2,67,828.17 0.08 3,08,106..28 0.11

Capital employed 32,14,024.97 28,80,871.77

Profit after tax is total profit after tax. Capital employed includes shareholders' fund, long term and short-term borrowings



Conart Engineers Limited
R

72

INVESTMENT PROPERTY  …....... “43”

Sr. No Particulars 31st March 202531st March 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)

1. Rental Income 2,02,131 1,72,500

2. Expenses Nil Nil

NOTES …....... “44”

Sundry Debtors and Creditors & advance are subject to confirmation by the respective parties. Necessary adjustments in accounts

will be made in the year in which discrepancy, if any, may be noticed.

NOTES      …....... “45”
Sundry Loan & Advances and other assets are, in the opinion of management stated at the amount realizable in the ordinary course

of business and provision for all known and determined liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amounts reasonably

required.

NOTES      …....... “46”
In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 19 - “Employee Benefits” disclosures in respect of the Defined Benefit

Gratuity Plan (to the extent of information made available by LIC) are given below:

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

A Assumption As On

Discount Rate 7.25% 7.250%

Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%

B Present value of obligations

Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 29,74,164 28,16,116

Interest cost 2,15,627 2,04,168

Current service cost 90,750 90,635

Benefits paid 0 0

Actuarial (gain)/loss 11,83,583 1,36,755

Present value of obligations as at end of the year 9,48,504. 29,74,164

C. Changes in fair value of planned assets

Fair value of planned assets at beginning of the year 30,95,711 29,01,340

Expected return on planned assets 2,09,032.10 1,94,370

Contributions 34,218 0.00

Benefits paid (11,83,583) 0

Fair value of planned assets at the end of the year 21,55,378 30,95,710

D. Actuarial gain/loss recognized

Actuarial gain/loss on obligations (11,83,583) (1,36,755)

Actuarial Gain/Loss for the year – plan assets Nil Nil

Actuarial Gain/Loss on obligations (11,83,583) (1,36,755)

Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized in the year (11,83,583) (1,36,755)

E. Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Present value of obligations as at the end of year 30,45,462 29,74,164

Fair value of planned assets at end of year 21,55,377.79 30,95,710.79

Funded status (8,90,084.21) 1,21,546.79

Net asset/liability recognized in the year (8,90,084.21) 1,21,546.79

F. Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 90,750 90,635

Interest cost 2,15,627 2,04,168

Expected return on planned assets (2,09,032.17) (1,94,370.67)

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 19,94,353 1,72,478
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For Govind Prasad & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Govind Prasad)
Partner

Membership No. 047948

Firm Registration No. 114360W

Mumbai

Dated : 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Conart Engineers Limited
(Jitendra S Sura) (Jimish J Sura)
Chairman & Managing  Director Executive Director (Finance)

DIN - 00480172 DIN - 03096064

(Narendra Shah)
Company Secretary, ACS 7480

Vadodara

Dated : 27-05-2025

Effects due to COVID-19 …....... “47”

The company has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 resulting from:

a. the possibility of constraints to render services which may require revision of estimations of costs to complete the contract

because of additional efforts;

b. onerous obligations;

c. penalties relating to breaches of service level agreements, and

d. Termination or deferment of contracts by customers.

The company has concluded that the impact of COVID-19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the nature of the

pandemic, the company continues to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties relating to revenue in future periods

Rounding off …....... “48”

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Reclassification and re-grouping. …....... “49”
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.
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